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1. Acronyms, Abbreviations and Glossary of Terms

A: Acronyms and Abbreviations

B: Glossary of Terms

CEO

CS

PS

PIC
JOOUST
GOK
ICPAK
CPA
IPSAS
A\

PAF
ASAR
UMB
KUCCPS
OSHA
PFM
PPE
PSASB
TVET
TVETA
PSC
KUPAA
SAJOOUST

SRC

Chief Executive Officer

Cabinet Secretary

Principal Secretary

Public Investments Committee

Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Technology
Government of Kenya

Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya
Certified Public Accountant

International Public Sector Accounting Standards
Vice Chancellor

Planning, Administration and Finance

Academic, Students’ Affairs and Research
University Management Board

Kenya Universities and Colleges Central Placement Scrvice

Occupational Safety and Health Act of 2007

Public Finance Management

Property, Plant & Equipment

Public Sector Accounting Standards Board
Technical and Vocational Education and Training

Technical and Vocational Education and Tra ining Authority

Public Service Commission
Kenya Universities Performing Arts and Film Association

Students’ Association of Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science

and Technology

Salaries and Remuneration Commission

Fiduciary Management- Members of Management are directly entrusted with the responsibility of
financial resources of the organization.

Comparative Year- Means the prior period.
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2. Key University Information and Management

(a) Background information

Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Technology is a Public University established
under the University Act No.42 of 2012 to train dependable manpower, offer high-quality University
teaching, and carry out innovative rescarch and community outreach programmes for sustainahlc;.'
socio-economic development. JOOUST was founded in 2009 through Legal Order No. 56 of 117
May 2009 as a Constituent College of Maseno University. The University was chartered as a
fully-fledged institution of higher learning on 13 February 2013.

The University is domiciled in Kenya and has no branches. The University currently has 8 schools, 2
centres and | institute namely;
e School of Agricultural and Food Sciences
School of Biological, Physical, Mathematics and Actuarial Sciences
School of Business and Economics
School of Education, Humanitics and Social Sciences
School of Spatial Planning and Natural Resource Management :
School of Informatics and Innovative Systems
School of Health Sciences
School of Enginecring and Technology
Centre for E-Learning
Centre for Environment, Agriculture and Food Sccurity (CEAFS)
TVET Institute |

(b) Principal Activities

JOOUST is committed to delivering on its Teaching, Rescarch, and Innovation mandate in support of
the achievement of the National Development Agenda. To this end, JOOUST has differentiated itself
as a centre of excellence in training, research, and community outreach services, offering practical
and market-oriented courses. JOOUST continually realigns its strategies and programmes in response
to changes and emerging trends in the operational environment and benchmarks with global best

practices.
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Core Values

These values eSpouse the philosophy of holistic scholarship and service to humanity through
wisdom, science, and technology.

Strategic Themes
* The obligation to offer quality education and training that meets the market demand, global
standards and Statutory & regulatory requirements,
® There is a need to create new knowledge throu gh research, innovation, and consultancy.

* The requirement to disseminate research output and innovations (o the community through
partnerships and linkages.

e Inadequate infrastructural capacity (human, financial, and capital) to facilitate optimal
operations of the University to deliver on its mandate.

® The need for aggressive resource mobilization to support the implementation of identified
strategies

Strategic Objectives

* Offer accredited and market-driven programmes (o increase student numbers from 8,000 to
20,000.

* Enhance Student retention and completion rate to 100%,

* Integrate research and innovation in all academic programmes,

* Institutionalize research to achieve 100% response to relevant calls for proposals.

® Increase research programmes and other initiatives aligned to community development needs,
* Expand capacity to accommodate 20,000 physical and online studens,

e Strengthen Corporate Governance & management to improve national ranking from 19 to |5,
* Increase University revenue by Kshs 1 billion from Kshs 2.4B p.a. to Kshs 3.4B p.a by 2026.
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(¢) Key Management

The University’s day-to-day management is under the following key organs:
® The University Council
e Council Committees
® The Vice Chancellor / CEO
® The University Senate
¢ Senate Committee
* The University Management Board

Members of the University Council

No. | Designation Name Date of
Appointment
1. | Prof. Shem Oyoo Wandiga | Chair of the Council 8" July 2022
2. | Mr. David Moranga Oyugi | Independent Member 23" May 2023
3. Ms. Joan Atieno Odawa Independent Member 23" May 2023
4. | Amb. Ambeyi Ligabo Independent Member 23" May 2023
- Mr. Isaac Kiprop Kibon Independent Member 23" May 2023
6. Dr. Willis Omwoyo Independent Member 8" June 2023
7 Mr. Micah Origa Rep. CS National Treasury and Continuing in
Planning Council
8. | Mr. Fahad Muthec Rep. PS, State Department for Higher | 29™ May 2024
Education and Research
9. Prof. Emily A. Akuno Vice Chancellor — Secretary to Council | 7™ September 2023

(d) Fiduciary Management
The University’s direct fiduciary responsibility vests in the Vice Chancellor, with delegated

responsibilities to the members of the University Management Board. The key management
personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30" June 2024 and who had direct fiduciary

responsibility were:

No. | Designation Name
I. | Vice Chancellor Professor Emily A. Akuno —
2 Deputy Vice Chancellor - PAF Professor Aggrey D. M Thuo |
3 Ag. Vice Chancellor -ASAR Professor Dennis Ochuodho |
4. | Registrar - ASAR Dr. Walter Akuno ————=
5 Registrar — Planning and Administration Dr. Immerculate A. Ayodo ]
6. | Chief Finance Officer CPA George K. Aduda T
.

vi _ . e
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Key University Information and Management (continued)

(¢) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

i agement. The organs thag _
The University is answerable to key government organs on financial manag
provide oversight are listed below. @

1) University Council

if) Council Committees

1i) Office of the Auditor General _
iv) Public Investments Committee of the National Assembly \
v) Commission for University Education

vi) Public Procurement Oversight Authority

vii) Ethics and Anti-Corruption Commission

The University Council and its committees provide fiduciary oversight on the University's financial

operations through the Finance, Administration, and Human Resources Committee. The Committee

reviews the Annual Budget, Quarterly, and Annual F inancial Statements before they are submitted to
the Ministry of Education and the National Treasury.

The Audit, Risk, and Govemnance Committee
operations and financial statements through the
oversight on internal controls and maj ntenance of

provides oversight of the University’s financial
Internal Audit of the University,

It also provides
Proper accounting records,

The Office of the Auditor General audits the-universit
[€ports are submitted to the N
fiduciary oversight of the univ

y's operations annually. The Auditor General's

ational Assembly through the P.L.C., which provides the overal]
ersity’s operations.

Regular audit. financial and progress reports are proy

funds to the University. This is to ensure financial
university.

ided to development partners w}

10 have provided
probity regarding the

utilization of funds in the

(D) University Headquarters

Main Campus, Bondo-Usenge Road
P.O Box 210-40601
Bondo, Kenya

(8) University Contacts
Telephone: (254) 057-2058000/2501804 |
E-mail: ve@jooust.ac ke

Website: www jooust.ac ke
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Key University Information and Management (continued)

(h) University Bankers

()

l.

Kenya Commercial Bank Ltd
Bondo Branch

P. O. Box 598 - 40601

Bondo, Kenya

Equity Bank Ltd
Bondo Branch

P.O Box 26 - 40601
Bondo, Kenya

Co-operative Bank of Kenya Ltd
Bondo Branch

P.O. Box 380 - 40601

Bondo, Kenya

ABSA Bank of Kenya Ltd
Kisumu Branch

P.O Box 831 - 40100
Kisumu, Kenya

Independent Auditors
Auditor-General

Office of the Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, University Way
P.O. Box 30084

GPO 00100

Nairobi, Kenya

Principal Legal Adviser
The Attorney General
State Law Office and Department of Justice
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 40112
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya
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3. The University Council

Council Members

Details

NAME: Prof, Shem Oyoo Wandiga, FRSC, D.SC. (he)

::ggl:Tllf)jl‘?!KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Chairman of the Council,

: iversi Sc.

QUALIFICATIONS: EBSL’JFTSC‘ I?[S)c (Howard University), M

ivers ) )
OB R ERINES o ) e eesttansai academia,
WORK EXPE a ; dvisory roles. These include
research, consultancy, administrative and advisory
in the following areas: o . '
Juiversily of Elairobi: Professor; DVC (Ad[mmstra'llon & El}:u:l:c?;‘
Principal College of Biological & Physical Science; Cha I
Department Chemistry Dept.; Senior. Lecturer; L‘ccturcr (inorgani
Chemistry. Co-ordinator University Investment PFQ]CCI. _
Chairman - Kenya National Academy of Sciences; Chalrm'an -
International Geosphere-Biosphere Programme Kenya Committee:
Chairman - Constitutive Committee of African Union of Pure &
Applied Chemistry and a member Kenya Chemical Society. Kenya’'s
Representative to UNESCO Executive Board; Expert Consultant to
UNEP; Member of General of the International Council of Scientific
Unions; Chairman Programme and External Relations Commissions of
UNESCO Executive Board; Member World Conference on Science

Assistant Inter American Universi
Chemistry,

NAME: Mr. Isaac Kiprop Chebon
YOB: 1962
POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Chairperson -

Academic, Research and Projects Committe
Risk and Governance Committee.

QUALIFICATIONS: B.A (UoN), MARD (the Institute of Soci
Studies)

WORK EXPERIENCE: He served a
of Nairobi; Director Human Resource
Ministry of State for Public Service G
Director Kenya School of Governme
University. A champion in Good Go
Delivery and Innovation; Consultant
Arid and Semi-Arid Lands in Kenya
Building, Gender Equity and Divers;

chlmical,
¢ and Member of Audit,

s a Council Member University
Management and Development
ender and Youth Affairs;

nt; and Lecturer at Egerton
vemance, Quality Service

in Food Security Strategies in
and Community Capacity

ty Management.
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NAME: Amb. Ambeyi Ligabo

YOB: 1952

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Member of Finance,
Human Resource and Administration Committee and Technical,
Academic, Research and Projects Committee

QUALIFICATIONS: LLB, LLM (St. John University), M.A (Azer
State University), PG Dip. (Institutc of Diplomacy)

WORK EXPERIENCE: With a distinguished career in diplomacy of
over thirty years, he has served both the government and the United
system in various senior representational positions as United Nations
Special Rapporteur (Human Rights), Ambassador (Democracy &
Good Governance) to the Great Lakes Organization, First envoy to
Malaysia, Founding coordinator, Regional small arms and Light
weapons secretariat, Senior political officer, U.N. Peace keeping
mission, University lecturer and Director, Multi-Lateral Dec, Ministry
of Foreign Affairs.

NAME: CPA Micah Origa

YOB: 1977

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: A member of the following
committees of Council: Finance, Administration and Human
Resources; Technical, Academic, Rescarch and Projects; and Audit,
Risk and Governance.

QUALIFICATIONS: MBA (Calicut) MSc-Finance (UoN), B. Com,
CPA (K).

WORK EXPERIENCE: He has wide professional and work
experience in the Public Sector, stretching over 15 years in Public
Finance Management, Public Sector Budgetary Formulation and
Management, and outstanding corporate governance. He has served in
several other Boards. He is the Alternate Member of the Council to
Cabinet Secretary, The National Treasury.

NAME: Mr. David Moranga Oyugi
YOB: 1961

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Chairperson — Audit, Risk
and Govermance Committee, and a member of Technical, Academic,
Research and Projects Committee.

QUALIFICATIONS: MBA(KU); BBA(Newport) Dip. Agri. Ext
(Egerton); Dip. Edu. Mgt., Cert. Edu. Mgt.

WORK EXPERIENCE: Mr. Oyugi has over 30 years of experience
in education administration and management, and is currently working
as a Principal. He has vast experience in coping with the challenges in
the education sector in terms of finance and business strategies in

the attainment of national development.
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NAME: Ms. Joan Atieno Odawa

: 1957 _ .
:gngION!KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Chairman Finance,

Administration and Human Resources _Commiltee,.and a member of
Technical, Academic, Research and Projects Committee.
QUALIFICATIONS: MBA(Catholic); B.A. (U?N) _ e
WORK EXPERIENCE: She has over 15 years experience lr(l_: oar
memberships including serving as a Board_Member S:a?ra ounty
Service Board, Advisory Board Catholic Justice and Peace; Advisory
Board Caritas Nairobi and several High Schools and qu}eges. Her
experience spans Planning and Administration, Rfeconmhauon and
Conflict Resolution, Mediation and Community Dialogue, Program
and Project Management.

NAME: Mr. Fahad Muthee
YOB: 1970
POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Mr. Fahad Muthee is the
alternate member of the Council representing the Principal Secretary,
State Department for Higher Education and Research. At the council he
is a member of Finance, Administration and Human Resources;
Technical, Academic, Research and Projects; and Audit, Risk and
Governance Committees of Council

QUALIFICATIONS: M.Phil. Edu. Adm. (Moi Uni.); MBA (Moi
Uni; Post Graduate Diploma (HRM) College of Human Resource;
B.Ed /Arts (Moi Uni.).

WORK EXPERIENCE: Mr. Muthee has wide professional and work

NAME: Dr. Willis Omwoyo
YOB: 1976
POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Membe

Ol r of Finance,
Human Resource and Administration Committee
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Expertise in health systems management, epidemiology, Health
programming, leadership and management in Health. Passionate about
cquity and gender cquality generally and in the health system,
Maternal, Neonatal and child health. Has taken part in several
health-related policy formulation documents and research. Plays an
integral role in the implementation of COP 23 for HIV and the National
HIV Prevention Plan 2023-2030. He is one of the consultants for the
CDC-led initiative on transitioning sustainable & quality HIV services
to the Counties aimed at actualizing the journey to self-reliance.

NAME: Prof. Emily Achieng Akuno

YOB: 1962

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Vice Chancellor
QUALIFICATIONS: PhD (Kingston University Surrey, UK), MMU
(North Western State, LA, USA); Bed (KU)

WORK EXPERIENCE: She has over 30 years’ expericnce in
University at various levels - Deputy Vice Chancellor - Cooperative
University of Kenya; Executive Dean of Faculty - The Technical
University of Kenya; Director/Head of School - University of
KwaZulu-Natal and Kenyatta University; Ag. Dean of Students -
Kenyatta University; Chair of Department- Kenyatta University;
university teaching, research, and postgraduate supervision from 1987
- Kenyatta University, the University of KwaZulu-Natal (SA), Maseno
University, and The Technical University of Kenya.
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4. Key Management Team

Management

Details

NAME: Prof. Emily Achieng Akuno

o 1C . )
:’}ggl.Tll)(?I%UKEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Yu:c phagccllol -
QUALIFICATIONS: PhD (Kingston University Surrey,
MMUS (North Western State, LA, USA); Bed (K'U) o
WORK EXPERIENCE: She has over 30 years” experience in
University at various levels - Deputy Vice Chancellor -
Cooperative University of Kenya; Executive Dean of Faculty -
The Technical University of Kenya; Director/Head of 'School -
University of KwaZulu-Natal and Kenyatta University; Ag.
Dean of Students - Kenyatta University; Chair of Department-
Kenyatta University; university teaching, research, and
postgraduate supervision from 1987 - Kenyatta University, the
University of KwaZulu-Natal (SA), Maseno University, and The
Technical University of Kenya.

NAME: Prof Denis Ochwdho
YOB: 1969
POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Ag. Deputy Vice

Chancellor - Academics, Students’ Affairs and Research
(ASAR)

QUALIFICATTIONS: B.Sc., M.Sc. (UoN), Ph.D. (Habil
Beyreuth).

WORK EXPERIENCE: He has over twent

: il L. ; Yy Yyears of
experience in university teaching, research

and outreach.

NAME: Prof. Aggrey D. M. Thuo S et
YOB: 1976

POSITION/KLEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Dcputy Vice
Chancellor — Planning, Administration and F inance
QUALIFICATIONS: BES (KU), M.Sc¢ Slu

MEPM (KU), Ph.D (Waikato) (1U: MBA (KuA),
WORK EXPERIENCE:

He has over 20 years of work experience at v
Associate Professor - Kenyatta Universit
University, Senior Lecturer - Jomo Ke
Agriculture and Technology;
Kenyatta University. Honora
London, Canada.

Chairman - County Land Management Board; Corporate
Member - Kenya Institute of Planners; Licensed National

arious levels:
Yy & Maasai Mara
nyatta University of
Lecturer and Assistant Lecturer —
ry Professor- Western University,

Environment Management _Authority (Kenya) Lead Expert/

Xiii__
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Auditor,

NAME: Dr. Walter Akuno
YOB: 1965

Academic Affairs, Students and Research (ASAR)
QUALIFICATIONS: Dip., B.Sc. M.Sc. and Ph.D. (Egerton)
WORK EXPERIENCE:

He has over 24 years’ experience in administration in the public
service and university cnvironment. He is responsible to the
DVC (Academic Affairs) for administration of University
academic programmes.

POSITION/KEY  RESPONSIBILITIES:  Registrar —

NAME: CHRP Dr. Immerqulate A. Ayodo

YOB: 1980

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Registrar — Planning
& Administration

QUALIFICATIONS: Ph.D. (JKUAT), M.Sc. (JKUAT),

BBM (MMUST), Dip (KIM), CHRP (K), MIHRM, MKIM
WORK EXPERIENCE:

She has over 15 years of administrative experience at University.
She is a member of the Institute of Human Resource
Management (MIHRM) and the Kenya Institute of Management
(KIM). She is responsible to the DVC (PAF) for administration,
general management and planning in the University.

NAME: CPA George K. Aduda

YOB: 1972

POSITION/KEY RESPONSIBILITIES: Chief Finance
Officer

QUALIFICATIONS: B.com. Accounting (Nairobi), MBA,
Finance (Catholic), CPA-K.

WORK EXPERIENCE:

He has over 20 years’ experience in financial management in
both the public sector and University management. He is a
member of the Institute of Certified Public Accountants of
Kenya.

XV
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I am delighted to present the Annual Report and Finan
am delip| ;

HH oNec STt n s
the yeur ended 30" June 2024, It is cxc””.lg,m_ ':2:[-"' on the significant
strides the University has taken in the }"'Cﬂr.]llb'l u'lr . il g
During this period, the University achieved mgn'l ican T .m.cm it
areas such as research, innovation, and cummgnlly engage 4 ‘. o ,
there were leadership changes, with the appointment of Professor Emily
Achieng® Akuno, as the 2" Vice Chancellor,

. h
; iversity’s 11"
The 2™ Vice Chancellor was officially installed on 11" March 2024 during the Umvcr‘-'le 9
. ath i i ucing
graduation eeremony at the Main Campus in Bondo. Demonstrating our dedication to pro &

' . - . o - a i &L [ 4 i I muS
high-quality praduates for the Job market, the Chancellor conferred Degrees and awarded Diplo
and Certificates to a total of 1,331 students,

The university remains strongly dedicated to advancing res

carch and community engagement. The
University demonstrated its res

carch strength through the benchmarking of its rescarch output,
Several partner universities collaborated with JOOUST to explore commercialization pathways, an
initiative supported by the Kenya National Innovation Agency (KeNIA),

The University is actively engaped in implementing both new and ongoing rescarch projects,
JOOUST developed several Memoranda n['Ululcmtanding (MoUs) 1o strengthen collaborations with
various institutions and organizations, These MoUs aim to enhance academic Partnerships, research
opportunities, and community development initiatives, Key focus
projects, student and faculty exchanges, capacity-building programs
technology transfer resources,

areas include joing rescarch
» and shared innovation and

As a university, we have adopled various strategics (o inte
recruiting international students and faculty, offering j
alliances, and developing joint programs.
employment opportunities, internationalization offers a i allenge. Oy
collaborations with esteemed institutions and industry partners ¢

broadening the scope and impact of our rescarch.

Despite key challenges, such as resource constraints from capitation cuts resultin
completion rate of capital projects, the University Couneil has remained st
services and meeting its obligations despite the highly dynamic Operation

g in a glow
cadfast in providing quality
al environment.
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Ministry, the Ministry of Education, to allocate development funds for the construction of our capital

projects.

Once completed, these projects will create more opportunities for teaching, rescarch, and innovation
and will enhance our region's engagement in global research and partnerships.

I extend my gratitude to all members of staff, faculty, and students for your continued hard work and
commitment, which have been instrumental in our achievements over the past years.

Prof. Shem O. Wandiga, FRSC, D.Sc. (hc)
Chairman of Council

XVi
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6. Report of the Vice Chancellor h\

[ am pleased to present the Financial Statement Report for Jaramog;
Oginga Odinga University of Science and Technology for the ﬁsf:al
year ending 30th June 2024. This report offers a com'prcl?ens‘wc
overview of the University's financial performance, hlghllghllflg
key accomplishments, challenges, and insights that have shaped its
financial landscape over the past year. . .

In the pursuit of academic excellence, Jaramogi Oginga pdlnga
University of Science and Technology has continued to ConSIStel-‘ltly
demonstrate its commitment to providing quality education,

fostering research and innovation, and contributing positively to the socio-economic development of
the region and beyond. This financial report serves as a transparent account of the university's

financial activities, detailing its revenue streams, expenditures, assets, and liabilities.

In a dynamic and challenging economic climate, the University has worked diligently to uphold fiscal
discipline while continuing to invest in facult

highlights the university's financial mana
mechanisms that promote responsible fi

y development and student support services. This report

gement practices, risk assessment strategies, and governance
scal stewardship.

THE 11th GRADUATION CEREMONY

The University held its 11th graduation ceremony on the 1 1th of March 2024. During
total of 1,331 candidates were conferred Degrees and awarded Diplomas and Ce

Chairman of the Council, Professor Shem Wandiga, who was the
Ceremony,

the ceremony, a

rtificates by the

presiding Chancellor, During the
[ was also installed as the 2nd Vice Chancellor of Jaramogi Oginga Qdi

Science and Technology. The ceremony was presided over by key government o
the Representative to the Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Education.

nga University of
fficers — including

EXCHANGE PROGRAMMES

Student exchange program is a comerstone of global education, providing students with invaluable
opportunities to immerse themselves in diverse cultures, languages, and academic env
University has participated in such exchanges to develop critical skills, including adaptability,

communication, and problem-solving, which are essential in today’s interconnected world. |
The University, through the Belgium-funded VLIR-UOS project, successfully implemented a series .'
of initiatives within the year, managed by the School of Agricultural and Food Sciences. The project
hosted international student rescarchers from the University of Ghent, Belgium, and focused on

capacity building for transformative Agri-Food Systems to enhance resilience in Kenya's Lake
Victoria Basin.

ironments. The

— XVil_
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To broaden student exposure and access to research facilitics available locally, the University through
the African Centre of Excellence for Sustainable Use of Insects as Food and Feed (INSEFOODS),
facilitated postgraduate students' participation in exchange programs with partner universitics and
rescarch organizations.

During the review period, three staff members from the School of Agricultural and Food Sciences
were awarded PhD scholarships. Additionally, the project supported a faculty exchange program with
Mzuzu University, Malawi.

To further strengthen regional academic collaboration, the University welcomed four regional
students under the Inter-University Council of East Africa (IUCEA) scholarship. These efforts
underscore the University’s commitment to fostering academic and research partnerships on both
regional and intemmational levels.

PARTNERSHIPS AND COLLABORATIONS

The University has strengthened its cooperation with global collaborators, domestic government
bodies at both national and county levels, local communities, industries, worldwide organizations,
fellow academic institutions, and various invested parties. This effort aims to fulfil its fundamental
mission of engaging in teaching, rescarch, and outreach to the community.

JOOUST has been élc‘lively involved in developing several Memoranda of Understanding (MoUs) to
strengthen collaborations with various institutions and organizations. JOOUST and KEFRI,
UTONGA, PAMOJA Trust, Siaya County Referral Hospital. These MoUs aim to enhance academic
partnerships, research opportunities, and community development initiatives. Key areas of focus
include joint research projects, student and faculty exchanges, capacity-building programs, and
shared resources for innovation and technology transfer.

COMMUNITY OUTREACH & CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Through collaborative projects, capacity-building programs, and the dissemination of knowledge,
JOOUST strives to empower communities, enhance livelihoods, and contribute to both regional and

national development.

To foster community outreach and broaden its corporate social responsibility, the University through
the Outreach and Extension Section focused on addressing societal challenges, promoting sustainable

development, and enhancing community well-being.

During the year under review, JOOUST took part in the Commission for University Education (CUE)
exhibition, held from June 12th to 14th, 2024, at the Kenyatta International Conference Centre
(KICC) in Nairobi. The event featured over 40 public and private universitics, showcasing their
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research and innovations. During the exhibition, JOOUST was r
research and innovation.

y on the adoption of smart agriculture
ledge and skills in modem farming
tainable water management, and

The University trained over 200 local farmers from Sia).m Count
techniques. This initiative aimed to equip farmers with knt‘)w
practices, including advanced technologies for precision farming, sus
climate-resilient crops. .
Further, the Uni\':rsity participated in various community enga.gemcqt ‘fom l(; bridge t'}:e
university-community gap through knowledge dissemination, capacity bullldmg,. an C'Ol.'nmuZl-y
engagement, empowering local stakeholders with skills and resources. The Unl- VCl‘S'll y participated in
the Second Aquatic Research and Blue Economy Conference (ARBEC I1) held in Klsum'u asa !Bronze
Sponsor, the 3rd Gem Agri Expo, 2024, where JOOUST showcased research outputs including the
value of cricket as food and feed, sericulture project; research solutions for improving natural
resources within the Lake Victoria Basin; and, academic programmes offered at JOOUST and the 1st
Kakamega International Investment Conference held at Masinde Muliro University of Science and
Technology.

TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER

A critical aspect of Technology Transfer is the protection of intellectual property (IP). The inventions
and innovations developed within our university are valuable assets that require safeguarding through
patents and other forms of IP protection. By licensing these patents to external businesses or creatin g
start-up companies, we can ensure that our innovations continue to develop and thrive in the
marketplace while generating revenue and fostering new economic opportunities. Technology
Transfer is not just a mechanism for sharing knowledge but a crucial component of our university’s
f;ommitmcnt to societal impact. It enables us to extend the reach of our research, ensuring that the
ideas and innovations developed here contribute to the betterment of society. As we continue to
advance our research and academic endeavors, the importance of Technology Transfer cannot be

overstated. Through this process, we truly fulfill our mission of transforming knowledge into
real-world solutions.

The University, through its Technology Transfer Department, facilitated 2 benchmarking exerc;

the JOOUST Master Plan for Commercialization with Dedan Kimathi Universit sty
Daystar University, Meru University of Science and Technology,
institutions, supported by The Kenya National Innovation Agency (KeNIA), sought to learn fro
JOOUST's successful commercialization pathway. Additionally, the University’s collaborati ‘m
KeNIA led to its representation in the United Kingdom alongside other universities Hom with

y of Technology,
and Embu University. These

The Board of Postgraduate Studies organized a workshop to utilize valuable student data During the

w?rkshop, approval was granted to incubate a pit latrine power generation product developed b
Diploma student from the School of Informatics and Innovative Systems. .

ized as the best university T
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FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP

This report highlights the university's effective financial management practices, comprehensive risk
assessment, and robust governance mechanisms that ensure prudent stewardship of its resources. By
efficiently utilizing its limited resources, the university fulfilled its fiduciary responsibilities,
demonstrating a commitment to careful and strategic financial administration. This approach has
fortified the university's operational resilience, enabling it to navigate unexpected financial challenges
successfully.

Through meticulous management, the university achieved strong operational results allowing
continued support for JOOUSTS, staff, and students during this difficult period. Moreover, we have
sustained our investments in key research prioritics.

My sincere gratitude to the University Council for their dedicated leadership and vital oversight.

In conclusion, I would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to the University community for their
tircless efforts in ensuring the smooth operation of our institution. As we move forward, the
University is committed to continually enhancing and delivering exemplary service at all customer
touchpoints, not just in the lecture halls, but across every aspect of student life.

Pl

Prof. Emily Achieng’ Akuno, PhD, OGW
Vice Chancellor/CEQO
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8. Corporate Governance Statement
JOOUST was granted a Charter on 13" February 2013. The University is governed by the University

Council, appointed in accordance with the University Act, 2012, and the enabling statutes. The
University Council is responsible for the governance of the University and is accountable to the
stakeholders in ensuring that the University complies with the laws and the highest standards of ethics
and corporate governance. Accordingly, the Council attaches high importance to good corporate
govemnance practices and has embraced the internationally developed principles and code of best

practices of good corporate governance.

Council Size, Composition and Appointments
The constitution of the Council is stipulated in the University Charter an

of 2012. The University Council is headed by the Chairman and is composed of Nine [9] members
inclusive of the Vice-Chancellor who is the only executive member. The constitution of the Council
takes into consideration requirements of the education sector, diversity of skills, academic
qualifications, gender, age and experience necessary to add value to the operations of the University.

d the Universities Act No. 12

Membership of the University Council
The Membership of the University Council is as follows:
a) The Chairman to the University Council appointed by the Cabinet Secretary in charge of
Education.

b) Five (5) independent Council members appointed by the Cabinet Secretary in charge of
Education.
¢) The Vice-Chancellor who is also the Secretary to the Council.

d) The Cabinet Secretary for the National Treasury or his alternate.
¢) The Principal Secretary for the State Department for Higher Education and Research or his
alternate.

Newly appointed members of the Council are facilitated to undergo an induction process covering the

business of the University by availing relevant information and also taking them through structured

induction training.

1e University Council other than the Vice-Chancellor shall normally hold office for a

upon expiry of which the member shall be eligible for re-appointment. No
for more than two consecutive terms. The profile of the

A member of tl

term of three years,

member may be appointed to the Council
current University council members is provided on pages ix - xii. The Cabinet Secrctary may from

time to time remove or replace a member of Council for a good cause. Vacancies may also arise in the
Council when a member resigns, at the expiry of a member’s term or death while serving in office.
The University Charter and the Universities Act No 42 of 2012 have established the following organs

of governance: -
e The Council
e The Senate
e University Management Board
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The University has continued to implement effective corporat'c Bz:;:n
relevant disclosures as provided in the PFM Act 2012, ensuring 5
independence, having clearly defined Council and Management
ensuring compliance with relevant |

mance by cnsurinm

g audit procedures ang “Udil
ies and responsibilities ang
aws and ensuring the highest levels of integrity at all levels in

University.

Council Charter . e

The Charter of the Council is crucial to the University’s governance and defines the Cm".]c” ° m_lc.s
and responsibilities as well as functions and structures in a way that supports the mm-n e AR
out their strategic oversight functions. The Charter provides guidance on the following:

The separation of the roles, functions, responsibilitics and powers of the Council and its
individual members

Nomination, appointment, induction, ongoing training and performance evaluation of the
Council and its committees

Policies and practices of Council on corporate governance matters, Council members’
declarations and conflict of interest, the conduct of Council and Council committee meetings

Powers delegated to Council committees as well as matters reserved for final decision-making
and approval by the Council

Responsibility of the University Council
As stipulated in the Universities Act No. 42 of 2012, the Council performs the following roles: -

i)

i)
iii)
iv)

v)

vi)

Employ staff;

Approve the statutes of the University and ensure they are published in the Ken
Approve the policies of the University;

Approve the budgelt;

Recommend for the appointment of the Vice-Chancellor, Deputy Vice-Chancellors and
principals of constituent colleges through a competitive process; and

Undertake other functions set out under the Act and JOOUST Charter.

ya Gazette;

Other functions and roles the Council performed include:

i)

Strategic Leadership: approving, monitoring, and guiding the

implementation of the
University’s Strategic plan.

ii) Performance Evaluation: Setting performance targets and reviewing the University’s results

so as to ensure the achievement of the operational plans.

iii) Integrity of Financial Reporting: Reviewing and monitoring controls, policies and procedures

put in place to ensure integrity in the University’s accounting records and financial statements.

iv)Risk Management and Compliance: Monitoring and reviewing the policies and procedures put

in place by the management to ensure that the various risks facing the University are
effectively mitigated and various regulatory and legislative requirements are complied with.

v) Stakeholders’ Interest: Guiding the University so as to ensure the fulfilment of the interests of

various stakeholders besides reviewing and monitoring corporate governance and corporate
social responsibility practices at the University.

XXXI




Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Technolog
Annual Rep

P e
Activities of the Council

ort and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2024
The Chairman

and the Vice Chancellor worked closely in planning the annual program and
for Council meetings. The meetings were structured to allow open discussions. All substanti

items had comprehensive briefing documents which were circulated carly in advance befo

re the
meetings for members to study and be

there were a number of other meetings to deal with specific matters. When Council members were
unable to attend a meeting,

to discuss their views with the Chairman.

Role of the Vice Chancellor

The Vice-Chancellor who is an independent ex-officio member of the Council is responsible for

leading and managing the work of the Council and ensuring that the decisions made were sound and

well informed. On the other hand, the Vice Chancellor was fully responsible to the Council for the
day to day running of the University. The Vice Chancellor bears responsibility for all management

actions and functions. Furthermore, he performed his role as the administrative and academic head of

the University.

Training & Induction and Performance

The Council members are trained regularly to ensure they are abreast with contemporary management
trends and also to be familiar with legal regimes affecting University’s operations and changes that

cmerge in legislation from time to time. The trainings provided to Council members cover risk
management, financial management, audit, ethics and governance.

Remuneration

The Council members are not entitled to salaries. The University covers the costs of travel and

subsistence of Council members while on official duty and a sitting allowance for meetings attended
as per the government guidelines. The Chairman is paid a monthly honorarium.

Risk Management

The Council is responsible for risk management and has an approved policy and procedure document
for risk management. The Council conducts risk assessment on a regular basis which informs the

internal audit plan. The identification and management of risk is a continuous process linked to the
achievement of the University’s objectives.

University Council meetings

The meetings of the University Council are held every quarter in a calendar year. In order to facilitate
the smooth running of its affairs, the University Council establishes such committees with

membership and with such terms of reference as provided for in the regulations. A calendar of the
University Council and its committees is prepared before the beginning of each financial year, The
Chairperson calls for meetings of the University Council after giving the requisite notice to al] its

members. During any meeting, the Council members so present signed declaration of interest forms,
in accordance with governing statutes.

XXXII

agenda
ve agenda

acquainted with beforehand. Besides regular Council meetings,

they were advised on the matters to be discussed and given the opportunity
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Committees of the Council
The code requires that Council should have an
committees to discharge the functions of Governance, tec
human resources and finance. The Council has the man
committees to assist in the discharge of the various mandates. Eac
whose orientation, training and professional skills are in the a_rca.
head of the functional arca in the University. The Commlltc.cs
University Act and report to the full council. From time to tim
established to discharge specific mandates on an ad-hoc basis.

Audit Committee and a maximum of lhfcc‘Other _
hnical matters, risk, strategy, compliance,

datory Audit Committee and two other
I Committee is headed by a member
Each committee is serviced by the
derive their authority from the
e, therc are special Committees

The following are the committees of JOOUST Council that were in place in the financial year:
1) Audit, Risk and Governance Committee
ii) Finance, Administration and Human Resources Committee
iii)Technical, Academic, Research and Projects Committee

The University Council nominates the Chairperson of each committee of the Council provided that in
the absence of the Chairperson of any committee, the members present and constituting a quorum
may elect a person from among them to chair the mecting. The Chairperson of the University Council
and the Vice Chancellor are cx-officio members of every committee of the Council.

Audit, Risk and Governance Committee
The Committee had an approved Audit Charter that spells out its responsibilities. The mandate of the
Audit Committee is to provide oversight.

i) The integrity of the financial statements and disclosures of the University

ii) The effectiveness of the intemnal controls and accounting policies of the University.

iii) The effectiveness of the Internal Audit function of the University

The Committee has delegated authority and meets on a quarterly basis. It is composed of five
members

one of whom is a registered and practicing accountant and a member of the Institute of Certified

Public Accountants of Kenya. It has the authority to authorize investigations. The members of the

Audit, Risk and Governance Committee who served were:

Name of Committee Members
Mr. David M. Oyugi - Chairperson

CPA Micah Origa — Rep. CS, The National Treasury and Economic Planning

Audit, Risk and ' Mr. Isaac K. Chebon — Independent Member
Governance Committee Mr. Fahad Muthee - Rep. PS, State Department for Higher Education and
Research

CPA Francis Ngati - [nternal Audit/Secretary

XXXIii
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Finance, Administration and Human Resources Committee

The Finance, Administration and Human Resources Committee is responsible for providing oversight
on the mobilization and utilization of resources, financial reporting, staffing, salaries and terms of
service. In addition, the Committee considered and made recommendations to full Council on
University Policies. The membership of Finance, Administration and Human Resources Committee
who served were:

Name of Committee Members

Ms. Joan A. Odawa - Chairperson

Finance, Amb. Ambeyi Ligabo — Independent Member

Administration and | Dr. Willis Omwoyo - Independent Member

Human Resources Mr. Fahad Muthee — Rep. PS, State Department for Higher Education and
Committee Reseireh

CPA Micah Origa - Rep. CS, The National Treasury and Economic Planning

Technical, Academic, Research and Projects Committee

The Technical Committee had a delegated authority from the Council and is responsible for the
University’s short-run, medium-term, and long-term planning. The Committee was responsible for
overseeing infrastructure development, capital projects, major maintenance works, and development
of teaching, research and outreach programmes and setting priorities for the University. The
membership of the Technical, Academic, Research and Projects Committee who served were:

Name of Committee Members

Mr. [saac K. Chebon - Chairperson

Ms. Joan A. Odawa — Independent Member

CPA Micah Origa — Rep. CS, The National Treasury and
Technical, Academic, Rescarch and | Economic Planning

Projects Committec Mr. David M. Oyugi — Independent Member

Amb. Ambeyi Ligabo — Independent Member

Mr. Fahad Muthee — Rep. PS, State Department for
Higher Education and Research

XXXIV
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9. Management Discussion and Analysis

ection A: University Financial and Operational Performance |

Overview

The University’s operations during the period werc relatively smooth with all the academic
programmes and other University activities proceeding as scheduled. The students concluded their
examinations successfully in April 2024 and proceeded on the long holidays, where they undertook
industrial attachments and were supervised accordingly. The University resumed its academic
programmes in August, 2024 with the reporting of the 2023 KUCCPS Cohort of first-year students.

Appointment of Members of Council
A new council member, Mr, Fahad Muthee, was appointed on 29th May 2024 to replace Dr Jemimah

Onsare, representing the PS, State Department for Higher Education and Research.

Appointment of Registrar, Planning and Administration

The University appointed Dr. Immerqulate Achieng Ayodo as the new Registrar for Planning and
Administration. The Registrar reports to the Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Planning, Administration, and
Finance) and will be overseeing various responsibilities, including custody of staff records, ensuring
the smooth and secure operation of personnel, central, and confidential registrics, evaluation of
divisional reports, decisions, and outcomes to recommend improvements in efficiency through new
approaches, policies, and procedures, establishment and management of effective HR structures and
systems, including the development and implementation of policies to attract and retain qualificd
personnel, coordination of performance contracting, staff appraisals, appointments, promotions,
retirements, disciplinary actions, and leave sanctioning to ensure HR functions operate scamlessly.

Dr. Ayodo's appointment marks a pivotal moment in the university's administrative continuity,
ensuring continued efficiency and effcctivencss in planning and administration.

a) Financial Performance

Revenue
During the year under review, the University’s total revenue was Kshs. 2,206M (2023: Kshs.

2,216M), comprised of Kshs.1,413M (2023: Kshs. 1,777M) from Non-Exchange Transactions and
Kshs.818 M (2022: Kshs. 439M) from Exchange Transactions.

The revenues of the University have been as shown in Table 1 and Figure 1 below over the last three

years:

Table 1: Three-year Revenue trend

Revenue 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024
Kshs’000 Kshs’000 Kshs’000
Non-Exchange Transactions 2,063,270 1,776,524 1,387,183
Exchange Transactions 558,902 439,698 819,009
Total Revenue 2,622,172 2,216,222 2,206,192

XXXVI e o
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The University’s revenue from non-exchange transactions, GOK and other donors, comprised 63%
g

of the total revenue (2023: 79%, 2022 80%), underlying the University’s dependence on funding
from Government to finance its operations.

The decline in revenue from non-exchange transactions in 2023/2024 was due to a decrease of GOK
recurrent capitation by Kshs 284,675,806 (Kshs 23,722,983 per month) .
The increase in revenue from exchange transactions in the

financial year 2023/2024 was mainly due
increase in tuition fees from the New Funding Model that w

as introduced by the Government for first

years in the academic year 2023/2024.

Operating Expenditure

The total operating expenditure was Kshs. 2,221M (2023: Kshs2,242 M). Table

indicates the expenditure trends over the

Table 2: Three-year Expenditure trend

last three years:

2 and figure 2 below

Expenditure 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024
Kshs'000 Kshs’000 Kshs’000
Employee cosls 1,197,728 1,225.210 1.256.288
Other costs 1,295,879 1,017,635 964,533
Total costs 2,493,298 2,242,845 2,220,821
XXXVii
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Employee costs comprised the largest proportion of operating expenditure in the last two financial
years, 2022 and 2023 at 50% and 55% respectively. In the current financial year, employee costs

constituted 55% of the total expenditure.

The dashboard below broadly illustrates the financial performance of the University. The amounts

are reflected in millions.

Table 3: Financial Performance FY 2023/2024

AS AT 30.06.24 AS AT 30.06.23
Kshs ‘M’ Kshs ‘M’
Revenue from Non-Exchange
Transaction 1,387 1,777
Revenue from Exchange Transaction 819 439
Total Revenue 2,206 2,216
Total Expenditure 2,220 2,238
Operating Surplus /(Deficit) (14) (22)
XXX Viii
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b)  Operational Performance
In FY 2023/2024, the following major events were undertaken by the University;

i) _ JOOUST welcomes First Year Students
During the year under review, the University welcomed first-year students on September 4, 2023. The

students will be undertaking diploma programs under the TVET program and degrees offered by the
University. This is the second cohort of students admitted to the TVET program.
The students underwent a meticulous onc-weck orientation program to familiarize themselves with
<:Jif1:crent departments and sections within the university. The vice chancellor welcomed them to the

niversity.

: f’ 54
the oriemation week

i) The 11th graduation ceremony

' i = o 1 g ia’
Year students, academic year 2023/2024 cohore during

The University held its |1th graduation ceremony on Friday, March 22nd, 2024. The 2nd
Vice-Chancellor, Prof. Emily Achieng Akuno, was installed during the ceremony. A total of 1,331
were conferred degrees and awarded Diplomas and certificates. The University Council and Dr. J (;yce

Ngure from the State Department for Higher Education and Research graced the ceremony,

XXXIX
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iii) JOOUST is the Best Institution in Research and Innovation =
The 4th Biennial Conference on Universities Research and Innovation hosted by the Commission for

University Education (CUE) themed “Catalyze Systemic Social Transformation Through Research
and Innovation" which started on 12th June 2024 ended with JOOUST being crowned the Best
Institution in Research and Innovation beating all other universities and research institution which
included 37 public and private universities and other research institutions that included KEMRI

xli
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iv) JOOUST and the American Institute for Research sign an MOU on training in Social

and Behavioral Sciences

JOOUST and the American Institute for Research (AIR) signed an MoU to establish joint training in
Social and Behavioural Sciences. The commitment was evident as JOOUST hosted AIR on a tour-fill
mission to familiarize with the institution. Through the collaboration, the two institutions are
expected to conduct joint seminars, workshops, lectures and research opportunities for students and

faculty.
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| v) JOOUST Green Futures, Capacity and Cooperation for

Agriculture Project i

Delegations from JOOUST, the Hochschule Weihenstephan T”eSd?rft'(HS\:’D OL(;;E;HY » the
University of Zambia (UNZA) and Université du Sine Saloum Eleadjl lbraKl.n:ca (ﬂ-M. : ) from
| Senegal were hosted at Stellenbosch University (SU) in South Africa for the Kick-off Meeting of 5

newly acquired project called " Green Futures: Capacity and Cooperation for the Transformation of
Agriculture ", that is set to run up to December 2025.

The universities will collaborate to address several regional and local African challenges by sharing
an effective network of experts and evidence-based practices in agriculture and climate change.
: el

’ e —
L R e Lo RIS e
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L)

The green futures delegations

the project Green futures: capacity & cooperation Jor transformarion af Agricudi

Sfrom JOOUST, HSWT, UNZA and USSEIN hosted ar Stellenbosch Unjvers iY to kick srar
re,

vi) JOOUST?’s potential research collaborations in envi

JOOUST, in partnership with NYADEC Intemational, hosted the University of New En
to explore potential research collaborations in enviro

i science. The partnership between NYADEC Internatio
' as a platform for students from both institutions to en
including the blue economy, the convergence of cli
rapid urbanization on water quality in the region.

ronmental science

gland ( UNE)
nge, and spj]
ngland serveq
crucial topics
the effects of "

nmental science, climate cha
nal and the University of New E

gage in discussions surrounding
mate change and agriculture, and

This event facilitated meaningful conversations and th
esteemed institutions. Additionally,

¢ exchange of innovative ideas between the two
the University of New England students gencrously presented the

he opportunity to visit some of the research projects within the
University.
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ADMINISTRATI ON BLOCK

articipants in the eollaborative partnership between JOOUST, NYA DE(.‘ International and the University of New

England (UNE)

vii)  JOOUST hosted a 5-day training workshop in collaboration with Weihenstephan-
Triesdorf University of Applied Sciences (Germany)

JOOUST in collaboration with Weihenstephan- Triesdorf University of Applied Sciences (Germany)
held a 5-day training workshop on 9" May 2024. The workshop combined intellectual leaming,
strategic planning and practical implementation to empower participants with skills for leadership and
innovation in Kenyan agriculture, and facilitating impactful community development.
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Participants in the 5 ~day training workrlmp

-' viii)  JOOUST courts Development in Gardening (DIG) Kenya for a research partnership in
, Indigenous vegetable growth for sustainable food security

The university hosted Development in Gardening (DIG) leadership to discuss possible areas of
collaboration between the two institutions. The meeting was hosted at the School of Agricultural and

Food Sciences in Siaya Campus.

| DIG is a civil society organization whose mission is to improve the nutrition and i velihoods of some

! of the world’s most uniquely marginalized people by teaching them to plant regenerative gardens that

grow health, wealth, and a sense of belonging.
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the wniversity and the DIG leadership

JOOUST Vlir-IUC Program Sub-project 3 conducts a two-day training workshop on
Grant Writing, Publication and Systematic Review

During the quarter, JOOUST Vlir-IUC Program Sub-project 3 received Prof. JP. Bogers from
Belgium's University of Antwerp who visited the institution to conduct a two-day training workshop
on 25" & 26™ April 2024 on Grant Writing, Publication and Systematic Review, targeting JOOUST
Rescarchers and Postgraduate Students under the program. Sub-Project 3 focuses on Building
Capacity for Research, Management and Control of Communicable and Non-Communicable Diseases

ix)

s
o N Pro

Prof. Bogers making u courlesy mﬂ 1o JOOUST ¥C

[ JP. Bogers during the training session
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s a world-class entrepreneurial Institution :

x())n 4" 1?121‘2?;4[:?;: t:::::::;l got a boosting insight from l'hc Kenya Ir.mol\;al:or‘l Agzn:y (];EN.I A

CEO Dr. Tonny Omwansa during an Entreprencurial Inslilunorwfl Maturlty ramt.vfo'r ; c;cr eview

as JOOUST pushes towards a world-class entreprencurial Institution through the actualization of
rescarch projects and innovation from its facultics and students.

——

ey T N

- - & T— i
repreneurial institudional framework peer review at JOOUST as the universify
projects and innovation

— " Ent
pushes through 1o actualization of research

Xi) JOOUST to offer collaborative training on Nurturing Care for Early Childhooq
Development (ECD)

Medical & Education Trust (KMET), and @PATH International o
Childhood Development (ECD). On Friday, 26" February 2024, JOOUST hosted th

update on Nurturing care for ECD and to assess the Univcrsily's preparedness an

County Officials, Directors, health volunteers, parents, and caregivers,

¢ team for a stapyg
d Capacity to trajn

In this partnership, JOOUST committed to developing a curriculum

and providing short courses on r
hurturing care, delivering content covering the five components o

f nurturing care, disseminating '
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, findings through workshops, conferences, and publications, and conducting capacity building through
b training and advocacy on the Smart Start initiative.
'i

HE mmumnmr;u < LT T!I

St oo 7
| JOOUST is parinering with the Conrad N. Hilton Foundation, Lake Region Economic Bloc, Kisumn Medical & Education
{ Trust (KMET), and PATH limternational on Nurturing Care for Early Childhood Development (ECD).

xii) JOOUST develops a master plan for commercialization.
i JOOUST is among the first universities in Kenya to develop a master plan for commercialization
H successfully. On 15th February 2024, The University hosted a team of representatives from Kenya
,| National Innovation Agency (KeNIA), Victoria Ventures, Meru University of Science and
'1| Technology, Dedan Kimathi University, and Daystar University. The three Universities came to
| benchmark and learn how JOOUST has achieved in developing their commercialization master plans.
i The visitors also got to visit the various projects within the University. The activity was sponsored by
the Kenya National Innovation Agency (KeNIA).

S — co meow gy

xlviii




_ D R ——— = o D e —*—ﬂ y
Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Tecl:;;zljﬁ; ¢ 30, 2024 %
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year et ﬁ_\.

ii r i Regional Show
xiii)  Agricultural Society of Kenya Kisumu . ' .
JOOUST posted a sterling performance at the ASK Kisumu Regional Show. During the Shqy,

between 24th -30th July 2023, JOOUST was crowned The Stand that bcsf lf‘lferpfels the Shm\f‘s \
Theme through Education and/or Research, Best Organization/Association in Community
Projects/Services Stand and The Best University Stand. _ '
The University showcased Research projects and Innovations that resonated cxceedmglyi well with
this year’s show’s theme: “Promoting Climate, Smart Agriculture and Trade Initiatives for
Sustainable Development.”

l Apart from emerging top in the three fore-mentioned categories, the University was also ranked 2"

| and 3" in The Best Stand Demonstrating the Application of Environmental Quality Standards, and

| The Best Innovation and Invention Stand, and The Best Stand in Research and Development
categories respectively.

{ PR B re -

- .

|
i

i

| ,

| Prime Cabinet Secretary of Kenyva, Hon. Musalia Mudavadi (Centre), hands the Ag. Deputy Vice Chancellyr Acodensic
I Student Affuirs and Research, Prof. Denis Ochuodho (Right) the trophy for the stand that Best Interprets current show ‘
| theme, during the official opening of the Kiswmn ASK Show 2023,

xiv)  Mombasa International Show
g JOOUST participated in the Mombasa International Show that was held from 6th to 10th September
2023 in Mombasa County at the invitation of the Ministry of Education, State Department for Higher
Education and Research. The invitation was in recognition and appreciation of the University’s

previous participation at the Ministry’s stand, which has gone a long way in enriching the exhibits
showcased.

The stand was populated by a series of promotional materials and outstanding innovations from the

The university's rescarch front scamlessly aligned with this year’s show theme: “Promoting
climate-smart agriculture and trade initiative for sustainable economic growth.” The University
presented three main research projects that showeased its rescarch initiatives toward sustainable

xlix
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economic growth. JOOUST emerged in second position in two trade classes: The Best University
Stand and The Stand that Best Interprets Current Show Theme: Education and/or Research.

.-\.

Awt\( -3 j- r*‘d’ﬁ-' !--'»\" "‘ “ o

xv)  JOOUST Conducts Successful SAJOOUST Elections
JOOUST successfully conducted the SAJOOUST 2023/2024 student elections for the Electoral
College Representatives (ECRs) and Student Governing Council (SGC). The physical voting process
was conducted with utmost transparency and credibility, with aspirants' agents allowed to witness the
election proceedings. JOOUST continues demonstrating its commitment to nurturing responsible and
capable student leaders who are vital in shaping the University's future. The successful completion of
the SAJOOUST 2023/2024 student elections is a testament to the university's dedication to hay;

ing
credible, verifiable and transparent elections towards achieving excellence in student governance
The newly clected officials were later swom into office presided over by the University’s Legal

Officer.
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xvi) ENACTUS JOOUST
(EN)Entrepreneurial (ACT) action made by (us) ENACTUS is a global Governmental Organization
headquartered in the United States of America. The robust network encompasses thought leaders
webbed from universities, colleges, and other higher learning institutions tasked to develop the most
successful and impactful projects in their communities. Enactus currently boasts a membership of 33

countries, each participating in national expositions drawn from thematic areas. The champions at the
national level proceed to represent their country at the ENACTUS World Cup.

Kenya is registered as Enactus Kenya under the Enactus Global membership. Enactus Kenya has
around twenty active Universities, among them Enactus JOOUST. Our very own Enactus JOOUST
Club has consistently set the pace with mind-blowing project ideas over the last five years. This year,
the Club developed a project to make ‘Liquid biofuels 'from algae. They aimed to counter the
pollution effects of petroleum products and offer an altemative fuel source.

| '

rY + ACTION = PROGRESS
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ENACTUS JOOUST team during the ENACTUS national expo 2023 at Eastland Hotel Nairobi fl

li -'




i Jrrmmag: Ogmga Odmga Umvemty of Science and Tec!mm’agy

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2024

xvii) KUPAA National Festivals
This year’'s KUPAA National Festival was hosted by Dedan Kimathi University of Technology

(DeKUT) between the 3rd and 10th of November 2023, with JOOUST posting exemplary
performances amid fierce competition. JOOUST’s brigade comprised of sixty students led by the staff’
of the Dean of Students office. JOOUST was second to none in radio theatre on the effects of drugs
and substance abuse category. In Cultural and Creative Dance, JOOUST bagged two awards; the
University also reccived the overall Adjudicator’s award for the best soloist first runners-up award

mmum%l)’/”lll?/
"'\mﬁﬂu\\w\“‘;‘m\mm 3 'a'"'“""'i""ﬁ"llwl'i ol =Sl " ll )
(& )

oy | . - : e - W

Students posmg with the radio theatre winners' t apmr 2023 at Dé!\ UT

xviii) My Safety, My Responsibility-Intensive Defensive Driving Course for University drivers
JOOUST held a five-day Intensive Defensive Driving Course for University drivers facilitated by the
Automobile Association of Kenya (AA Kenya) from 13" to 17" May 2024. The training ended on a
high note with a sensitization on Road Safety Awareness talk to all staff. The talk under the theme:
“My Safety My Responsibility” was to remind the staff, who are all road users, to be more vigilant
when using the roads either as drivers, passen gers, or pedestrians to reduce and manage road crashes

and fatalities in Kenya.
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Nyakasumbi Primary School, Gunda Sigomre Primary School, Uloma Primary School, and ACK
Masita, where they continued their mission.

t 3 - g r ; ....._-_'-,_'r- e ~ Lo f . —— L
The Acting Registrar, Plannning and Administration Mr. Benard Ohanga plants a tree

xxi) JOOUST holds Innovation event.
The School of Informatics and Innovative Systems (SIIS) flagged off a two-day Innovation event on

the 5th and 6th of February 2024, featuring a wealth of innovations by J OOUST researchers, students,
and staff. The primary goal of the Innovation event was to cultivate a dynamic culture of creativity,
collaboration, and forward-thinking within our academic community. By bringing together students,
faculty, and staff from diverse disciplines, it aimed to stimulate interdisciplinary learning, promote
hands-on problem-solving, and inspire a mindset shift toward innovation. Themed EcoSphere:
Innovate for a Sustainable Tomorrow, the event attracted guest exhibition tours of High schools,

including JOOUST students.

; Vi B\ e e
.Tlre Scffrmi of Informatics and Innovative Systems (SHS) Imovation evenr in February 2024 ﬂ’amrfng & Weailth &
innavations by JOOUST researchers, students, and staff’ et i
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Fcction B: Key Capital Projects Implem ented/Ong
; ition Block, Rescarch Centre, and
The main projects under construction during the year include the Tui

. ment of Kenya funds these
Administration Block. Through the Ministry of Education, the Govern

st doet Actual Amounts
g il (KShs
Research Centre 20’003’838 5,000,000
Administration Block 20,000, %

Tuition Block 20,000,0

Total 60,000,000

The University has Commissioned ope of the flagship projects, the Research Hub for Blue Economy

at Miyandhe Campus, This facility will atgracy students and academics aljke by Providing a new ang
exciting environm ent for work.
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Appendix 1. Indicates the status of implementation of the projects.
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| Section C: Compliance with Statutory Requirements

: i i tions and adheres t
The University complies with all laws and regulations applicable t(? its tol‘:;l;illl s Eell o thz
generally accepted standards and best practices. In a manner consisten

- ions applicable to its
Guideline, the University will identify and monitor the statutes and regulations app $
operations and report to the appropriate bodies.

The University strives to comply with the policies and procedures, as welI. as the regulatory and
statutory framework governing its existence and operations. The University promotes statutory

compliance by providing timely support to the responsible stakeholders as the need arises.
Regularly, the University Mana gement:

a)  Monitors the list of statutes and re
]i b) Initiates a university-
. ¢)  Reports to the Audit,
; list of statutes and re
!! proposed mitigation strategies,

! d)  Ensure that legislative modifications are considered in the applicable policy guidelines and
l procedure manuals,

gulations applicable to the activities of the University.
wide survey through declarations of compliance.

Risk and Governance Committee of the Council on the comprehensive
gulations applicable to the activities of the University, their effects, and

l In the year under review, JOOUST complied with all statutory obligations.
|
|

Section D: Major Risks/Challenges Facing the University

The university faces several challenges, including funding gaps in government and research grai
This has led to a significant budget implementation deficit, especially in staff remuneration

and
letion. This has led to high pending bills and a slowdown in the
completion rate for capital projects. Approved research
|

projects have also missed funding
government and other development partners.

.

1ts.
facilitation of capital project comp

from the

In addition, the University faces a risk from the reduction in the number of self-sponsored students
admitted to the University due to a decreased pool of self-sponsored students. The decrease in the
; 1 number of admissions of this cohort of students has resulted

in a reduction in anticipated tuition fees
thus resulting in financial challenges. The sector also lacks the capacity to adopt and blend science
| and innovations.

_ Eection E: Material Areas in Statutory and other Financial Obligations

The University had arrears in pending bills or statutory obligations as at the end of the financijal year,

E‘ection F': The University’s Financial Probity and Serious Governance Issues

The University ensures strict adherence to its code of ethics

» Which is based on integrity,
professionalism, and honesty, in managing its financial resources, procurement, and beyond the legal
requirements,

"l\ lvii
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The University has put in place measures to promote financial probity. These include:

i) The University Council, Management and Staff act cthically at all times in accordance with
the Public Officers’ Code of Conduct as set out in the governing statutes.

ii) Officers do not make improper use of their positions.

iii) Officers avoid placing themselves in a position with the potential for claims of bias.

iv) The University does not seek to benefit from stakeholder practices that may be dishonest,
unethical or unsafe

v) Conlflicts of interest arc managed appropriately

vi) All stakeholders are treated fairly and equitably

The University has established governance structures to address any exposures promptly. There were
no reported financial improbity issues reported by either internal or external parties during the year.

10. Environmental and Sustainability Reporting

JOOUST exists to train and provide well-equipped and dependable manpower by offering practical
and market-oriented courses and programmes. Towards this end, the university has continually
realigned its strategies in response to changing and emerging trends in the environment. In order to
achieve this, the university has developed various strategies with the students, who are its main
customers, in focus through the methodology of delivery of learning, which has metamorphosed to
include blended virtual/e-learing with physical contact.

i) Sustainability strategy and profile

Considering the complexity of the social-economic operating environment, the University has
developed and embedded robust mechanisms and actionable plans to meet its mandate. Since TVETA
accredited the university to offer TVET programs in February 2022, the university has admitted two
(2) cohorts to date, totalling 578 students, with an additional 373 students expected in September 2024
for the third Cohort.

The university has set up governance structures, processes, and systems to ensure effectiveness and
efficiency in decision-making. In this regard, the university has revised its Statutes, reviewed and
formulated new policies, and ensured that the ERP is fully functional and commissioned by the end of
the first quarter of FY 2024/2025.

To increase its resource base, the university has ensured that it provides quality programmes to
students, hence the accreditation of 9 programmes for diploma level 6 and 1 program for level 5 by the
TVET Authority. The university senate has also approved 13 academic programmes for acereditation
by the Commission of University Education (CUE) which will be declared during the next KUCCPS
placement cycle. In addition, efforts have been made on writing proposals which have resulted in
cight (8) newly funded projects, and three (3) proposals have been shortlisted and awaiting final
funding consideration. The new projects are expected to commence in the FY 2024/2025.

lviii
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Further, through constant engagements with internal partners, national and county governments, the

community, local industries & intemational organizations, peer institutions and stakeholders, the

University is poised to provide cutting edge teaching and research in order to provide sustainabje

solutions to perennial challenges. In addition, the university being a beacon of excellence welcomes

interaction with high schools for purposes of enhancing exposure to students and also being visited by

various universities for bench-marking,

ii) Environmental pPerformance

The University is committed to prov
environment, and conserving energy by
resources by reusing and recycling mate
packaging and other materials where necessary and as appropriate.

iding a safe and conducive workplace, protecting the
use of renewable over non-renewable energy and natural
rials, purchasing recycled materials, and using recyclable

Being a learning institution, the university will strive to provide leadership in scientific, technological,
and innovation efforts to promote environmental protection and understanding,

To ensure that the momentum of sound environmental practices s maintained, the university
periodically conducts detailed audits and self-assessments on environmental policy adherence and
implementation to determine the appropriateness of any corrective measures.

iii)Employee welfare
The University has a recruitment policy that provides guidelines for ensuring a transparent and fair

hiring process. This policy assists the University in selecting the right candidate based on merit and
relevance to the job. This policy complies with the Constitution of Kenya 2010, PSC, SRC, and the

Employment Act 2007.

The university conducts training needs assessment to cvaluate the skills gap of the employees in the
university and organizes for their training by providing the necessary resources. This is meant to
attract and retain high-calibre staff to help execute the university's mandate.

Further, and in compliance with the Public Service Commission code, university employees are

upon sct targets. Performance appraisal is an ongoing process that links

appraised against agreed-
and reward systems.

performance to organizational objectives, professional development, training,

The University adheres to the OSHA Act 2007 by ensuring a secure, safe, health, and welfare of al|
employees at work and protecting persons other than persons at work against risks to safety and health

arising out of, or in connection with, the activities of persons at work.
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iv)Market place practices-
a) Responsible competition practice.

The University executes its mandate with its customers in a fair, professional, transparent, and
accountable manner. To ensure this is achieved, the university has an ethics and integrity policy that
establishes its workers' ethical principles and conduct. The University is apolitical and serves all

without discrimination.

b) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations
Suppliers of the university are major stakeholders. They ensure t
services for smooth operations. The university is a public University

law on procurement, follows the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal (PPAD) Act 201 .
and payments for services

he time of signing the contract.

The University honours all the contracts it signs with its contractors,
provided are made as per the agreement between the parties at t

¢) Responsible marketing and advertisement
The University uses online and print media to reac
means, the university uses its website and social
LinkedIn, and Facebook for marketing, advertisements, and communication.
In the print media, the University advertises through the
which regulates advertisements from all government entities.

d) Product stewardship
JOOUST is committed to providing quality u
community outreach. In order to achieve this, the
service charter. It is the desire of the University to imp

SUCCESS.

v) Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements
JOOUST, through the Extensio
university and the community. It focuses on app
to address societal challenges, promote sustaina

he timely provision of goods and
and, in an effort to adhere to the

h the public and stakeholders. Through online
media platforms such as WhatsApp, Twitter,

Government Advertisement Agency (GAA),

niversity cducation through training research and
University has drawn & outlined a broad and robust
lement the charter fully to ensure continued

1 and Outreach section, is dedicated to bridging the gap between the
lying the university’s academic and research expertise
ble development, and enhance the well-being of the

community. By engaging in collaborative projects, capacity-building programs, and knowledge
dissemination activities, JOOUST aims to foster community empowerment, improve livelihoods, and

contribute to regional and national development.

In the year under review, the following CSR activities were implemented by the staff and students of

the university in collaboration with various partners;

a) JOOUST Disability Advocacy Club visit to St. Oda Aluor School

The club visited St. Oda Aluor Scholl for the visually impaired on 23" March 2024 for an outrcach
program. The school provides essential educational services for children and young adults aged three

to twenty who are visually impair

Ix

ed, blind, or deaf/hard of hearing. The club members, led by the
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patron, Dr. Gregory Juma, arrived with donations that were gratefully received by the SW
Teacher and School President.

The visit was filled with various activities aimed at engaging the learners, including cleaning gy,
dormitorics and compound, timming flower beds, sharing meals and refreshments, playing games
and entertainment, and offering mentorship talks. The core mission of the JoousT Disability

Advocacy Club is to foster a better understanding and positive attitude toward individuals with
disabilities in society.,

T

s Y e el - =

St. Oda A lor School MAnagement rece

ive donation from the clup o
b) JOOUST Charity club visit to River Jordan Ministry Children’s Home

The Charity club members accompanied by one staff member, visited the Rive
Children’s home in Bungoma County, to give back to society. The team, led b
the Club’s chairperson, Mr. Innocent Mbeche, SAJOOUST president Mr. All
SAJOOUST Deputy President Ms.Diana Nekesa brought with them food ite
beddings, and personal effects including sanitary pads and tissue papers whj
the persons in charge of the facility.

The team also engaged with the kids in various activities, includin
cooking, playing, as well as mentorship talks with the children wh

r Jordan M inistry
y

an Luo Humwa and
ms, clothing,

ch they presented to

& washing clothes and utensils,
0 were keen and eager to learn

: ' ! Ministry Childiren's home
Charity Club members domate fouid wems 1o River Jordan Ministry Childre

Ixi
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¢) USAID Boresha Jamii Maternity Open Day

USAID Boresha Jamii project by JOOUST remains steadfast in its commitment to increase access (0
quality reproductive, maternal, newborn, child, and adolescent health (RMNCAH) services in
Kisumu County. Subsequently, the program recently supported a maternity open day at Migosi
Sub-County Hospital in Kisumu County. The event saw active participation of 145 expectant
mothers, thereby marking a crucial step towards empowering and educating mothers on essential

practices in maternal and neonatal health.

A presenier speaking (o a section of mothers present

d) Empowering Communities for Early Childhood Development - .
USAID Boresha Jamii project also facilitated a three-day sensitization program on nurturing care in
Early Childhood Development at the Magadi Hall. Community Healt.h Promf)ters (CHPs) from
Orongo and Buoye community units engaged in discussions about essential pract:ces.for newborns.
The team focused on educating mothers about the three crucial compone.nts of nurturing car:::
maintaining good health, ensuring adequate nutrition, and prioritizing child safety and secm.-: ty. Thcy
provided valuable insights into the benefits of breastfeeding for both. mother and bz.nby, ld?ﬂtlfied
danger signs during pregnancy and for newborns, emphasized t.he lmmea.nce .of -mjlmun.;zancn,
discussed children's rights, and covered various related topics. This sensmzzftlon lmh?twe al-mcd to
empower CHPs with the knowledge and skills to contribute to the well-being of children in their

communities.

1xii
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f) Participation in the Siaya Youth Mcntorship
and Outreach participated in the S;

These activities underscore JOOUSTs commitment to

community well-being, and contributing to regiona

fostering Sustainable development, enh
I and nationa| Progress through ¢4y,
innovation, and collaboration.

g) Community Engagement in the following fora
The 3rd Gem Agri Expo, 2024, was held from 6th to 7th M

showcased rescarch outputs, including the value of cricket as fo

od and feeq, 4 Sericulture
research solutions for Improving natural resources within the L

event took place at the Kenya Medical Training College, Siaya Ca

mpus.
ancing
cation,

arch 2024, during Which JoousT

project,

ake Victorig Basin, ang .
’ acad
Programmes offered at JOOUST., ademic

The [st Kakamega Internationa] Investment Confere
Friday, March 22nd, 2024, at Masinde Muliro Uni
showcased its research expertise and innovatjve

Ixiii

March 19th, to
logy. JoousT
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11. Report of the Council

Ihe University Council submits their report together with the financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2024, which show the state of the University s affairs.

i)  Principal activities

The principal activities of the University continue to be to offer high-quality university training, carry
out innovative rescarch and community outreach for sustainable socio-cconomic development.

ii)  Results

The results of the University for the year ended June 30, 2024, are set out on page | to 6.

iii)  Members of the Council

) . . P ‘e d
The members of the Council who served during the year are shown on pages 1x-Xil. On 23" May

2024, Dr. Jemimah Onsare was replaced by Mr, Fahad Muthee as the Representative of the PS, State
Department for Higher Education and Research.

iv)  Auditors
The Auditor-General is responsible for the statutory audit of the University in accordance with Article

239 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015 for the year ended June 30, 2023.

By Order of the Council

q
-

sassrssssnamsansnnnapeial sasssaRBRETRIFIaRES e

Prof. Emily Achieng Akuno
Vice Chancellor/Seeretary to the Council

Ixiv
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12. Statement of Council Members® Responsibilitie d Section 47 of the Universities Act, 2012
Section 81 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 an , ect of the University, which giye
require the University Council to prepare financial statemc.nls in resp i o i il v and (ha
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Univerélt}’ a(:i]thiz j;so veqiilid 15 egeuredharihe
: e un )
operating results of the University for that year. Th'f-' ounct h veascuable:nomrscy e Riangis
University keeps Proper accounting records which disclose wit

. ing the assets of the
position of the University. The Council is also responsible for safeguarding
University,

The Council is responsible for the
which give a true and fair view
financial year ended on June 30,

preparation and presentation of the University’s financial statements,
of the state of affairs of the University for and as at the end of t.he
2024. This responsibility includes: ()Maintaining adequate financial

period; (ii)Main[aining proper » Which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the finanejal position of the University; (iii)Designing, implememing and maintaining internal
controls relevant to the Preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensurin g that

they are free from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud; (iv)Safeguarding the assets

of the University; (v)Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and (vi)Making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances,

The Council accepts responsibility for the University’s financial state
using appropriate accounting policies Supported by reasonable and p
in conformity with International Public Sector Accounti
required by the PFM Act, 2012
University’s financial statements give a true and fajr view of
during the financial year ended June 30, 2023, and of the Uni
The Council further confirms the completeness of the account
which have been relied upon in the preparation of the Uniy
adequacy of the systems of internal financia) control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Co

the state of the Univcrsity’s transactions :!
versity’s f

Inancial position as at that date.
'8 records maintaineq fo; the University, i
ersity’s financial Statements g well as the

uncil to indicate that the U

niw:rsity will not emain g £oing

concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this Statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The University's financial statements were approveqd by the Council oy Q?HTQ 2 Q_n’a-\f’ ;
....... , SR

on its behalf by: }— ened

) ; : Lﬂ— Atan)
Prof. Shem 0. Wandiga Prof, Emily Achien
Chairman of Council

& AKuno, Ph.D, oGw
Vice—Chanccllor

Ixv
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5‘} FFICE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL NAIROBI

Enhancing Accountability

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON JARAMOGI OGINGA ODINGA
UNIVERSITY OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE, 2024

PREAMBLE
| draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements are
fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements;

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in the Use of Public Resources which
considers compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices,
circulars, guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a
prudent, efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the
Government achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the

intended purpose; and,

C. Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
management environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the entity.

A Qualified Opinion is issued when the Auditor-General concludes that, except for
material misstatements noted, the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework. The Report on Financial Statements
should be read together with the Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in the Use of
Public Resources, and the Report on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk
Management and Governance.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012, and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts
of the report when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qualified Opinion

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Jaramogi Oginga Odinga
University of Science and Technology set out on pages 1 to 44, which comprise of the

. ) . v . T ——
Report of the Auditor-General on Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Technology for the year ended
30 June, 2024



statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2024 and tfhe s;e:cigﬁse:; c?:; tg?:nmal
performance, statement of changes in net assets, statement 0 calf1 b ment
of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year ther_l enaed a At w't?zhm
significant accounting policies and other explanatory mformathn in ac¢:§cot;1 Pc 2 lA e
provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and S.ectlon 3_5 or the Fublic Audit
Act, 2015. | have obtained all the information and explanations \fvh:ch to the best of my
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in the -Bas[s for Quahﬂgd
Opinion section of my report, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and
Technology as at 30 June, 2024 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended, in accordance with International Public Sector Accounting Standards
(Accrual Basis) and the Public Finance Management Act, 2012.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Rendering of Services -Unsupported Adjustments on Tuition Fees and Related
Charges

The statement of financial performance reflects revenue from exchange iransactions
amount of Kshs.746,475,860 in respect of tuition fees and other related charges as
disclosed in Note 9 to the financial statements. Review of the tuition fees and related
charges transactions, revealed several invoice adjustments described as reversals,
undercharge, wrong invoicing, admin charges reversals and school fees paid through
KCB saving, additional school fees, correction of an overbill, double invoice as well as
over charge in the rendering of services ledgers most of which relate to tuition fee
collections. Further, the following anomalies were noted;

i.  The adjustments were not supported by appropriate error logs, adjustment
approvals and authority, sufficient explanations for each adjusted description and
documentation approved by the Chief Accounting.

ii. ~ The schedule provided did not indicate the original invoices vs the adjustments
being made for the various students to balance theijr accounts therefore
questioning the authenticity of the adjustments.

iii. ~ The adjustments were done by different user IDs as per the schedule provided,
without proper approvals this puts the university at a higher risk of fraud and loss
of revenue. It was not clear of the existence of proper internal control to eliminate
the risks that come with the various adjustments.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and assurance that revenue collection by the
university was effective and efficient could not be confirmed.

Report of the Auditor-General on Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Technology for the year ended
30 June, 2024
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2. Deposits with Suppliers

The statement of financial position reflects receivables from exchange transactions
accounts balance of Kshs.233,647,820 as disclosed in Note 23 to the financial
statements. This balance includes Kshs.472,000 in respect of deposit with suppliers.
However, supporting documents such as schedule with the supplier details, payment

vouchers as well as budgetary allocation and contracts agreements were not provided for
audit verificet.on

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the deposit with suppliers’
balance of Kshs.472,000 as at 30 June, 2024 could not be confirmed.

3. Research Expenses

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 17 to the financial
statement reflects a total expenditure on research expenses Of Kshs.601,310,851,
Review of Note 17 revealed that no expenditure was incurred during the year under
review on about nine out of thirty eight donor funded projects including; Conflict Violence
and Environmental Change, Neonatal Sepsis Study, Mobility Fund, Wheal Change
Project, Whose Heritage, Participatory Innovation, More Crop per Drop, Pilot Health,
Design and Synthesis and EARC Project.

It is not explained and no documents were provided to justify the existence of these
projects in the University books since no documents including financing agreements or
nature of work these projects are involved in were provided for audit verification.

In the circumstances, the record of existence of donor projects within the university could
be misleading.

4. Casual Wages

The statement of financial performance reflects employee costs of Kshs.1,256,288,090
as disclosed in Note 12 to the financial statements. Included in this amount is an
expenditure of Kshs.18,539,504 in respect of casual wages. However, there was no
documentary evidence of how casual workers were identified and recruited and no
evidence that a needs assessment and staff rationalization was carried out to identify
departments’ staff shortage to justify the need to hire casual employees. Further, muster
roll records indicating the work performed by the casual workers were not provided for
audit review.

In the circumstances, we could not confirm the accuracy and completeness of the figure
for casual wages.

The audit was conducted in accordance with International Standards for Supreme Audit
Institutions (ISSAls). | am independent of the Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of
Science and Technology Management in accordance with 1SSAI 130 on the Code of
Ethics. | have fulfilled other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in
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accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to peﬁOLT;?r?egL;glisuf%ilnna:ngiag
statements in Kenya. | believe that the audit evidence | have o n

appropriate to provide a basis for my qualified opinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of ‘most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. Except for the matter described in thge
Basis for Qualified Opinion section, | have determined that there are no other key audit
matters to communicate in my report.

Other Matter
Unresolved Prior Year Matters

In the audit report of the previous year, the issue on valuation of assets was raised under
the Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources.

However, Management had not resolved the issue as at 30 June, 2024.
Other Information

Conclusion

Management is responsible for the Other Information set out on page iii to Ixvi which
comprise of University Information and Overall Performance, Statement of Performance
Against the University's Predetermined Objectives, Environmental and Sustainability
Reporting and Statement of Management'’s Responsibilities. The Other Information does
not include the financial statements and my audit report thereon.

Basis for Conclusion

In connection with my audit on the University’s financial statements, my responsibility is
to read the Other Information and in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work | haye performed,

| conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information. | am required
to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN THE USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on thg audit procedures
performed, except for the effects of the matters described in the Basis for Conclusion on
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Lawfulness and Effectiveness in the Use of Public Resources section of my report, |

confirm that nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public
resources have not been applied lawfully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Non-compliance with Two-Thirds of Basic Salary Rule

Review of the payrolls together with other documentation provided for audit verification
revealed that the JOOUST did not comply with the provisions o

: f the Employees Act that
require employees not to suffer deductions of more th

; an two-thirds of their basic pay.
Review of the payroll revealed that on average, 100 sta

- f# members received less than a
third of their pay every month.

This was contrary to the provisions of Section 19(3) of the Employment Act, 2007 which

states that the total amount of all deductions that may be made by an employer from the

wages of his employee at any one time shall not exceed two thirds of such wages.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2. Over Expenditure on Recommended Ceiling for Employee Costs

The statement of financial performance reflects employee costs of Kshs.1,256,288,090
as disclosed in Note 12 to the financial statement. This is approximately 56.9% of the

entity's total revenue of kshs.2,206,191,928 exceeding the recommended 35%. This was
contrary to Regulation 26(1)(a) of the Public Finance Management (National

Governments) Regulations, 2015 which states {hat the National Government expenditure

on wages and benefits for public officers should not exceed thirty-five (35%) of the total
Revenue.

In the circumstances, Management contravened the Public Finance Management Act
Regulations, 2015.

3. Failure to Maintain Individual Research Project Accounts

The statement of financial performance reflects research grants of Kshs.599,882,091 as
disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements. However, review of records revealed that
there were 30 active research projects in the University while Management was
maintaining a total of three (3) bank accounts/ cash books These accounts are VLIR-IUC,

Insefoods (ACCE Il) and UBJ Projects. This implies that research income and expenditure

records for some projects are posted in a single cash book. This would make it difficult to

confirm the financial position of each research project.

In the circumstances, Management contravened the agreements with the financiers, who
required separate cash.
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4. Use of Outdated Collective Bargain Agreements

During the year under review, the University operated using outdated Collective Bargain

Agreements (CBA) as shown below:

Period of use
ESSHEIHA 2017-2021
KUSU 2013-2017
UASU 2017-2021

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

5. Missing HR Information

We observed that Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Techpology did not
discharge its function as per the Employment Act. Employee data provided for audit
review revealed that nineteen staff had missing KRA PINs.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

6. Non-compliance with the Treasury Circular on Maintenance of an Integrated HR
System

Review of Human Resource information provided for audit review revealed that the entity
maintains summary payrolls and not integrated payroll products containing integrated
details of specific and gross earnings for employees, details of specific payroll deductions
and total deductions for employees. This contrary to Guideline no. 32 of the Treasury
Circular No.16/2020 ref. no.ES/03 ‘P’ (50) of 26th August 2020 ‘Guidelines for preparation
of the 2021/22 -2020/24 medium term Budget' stated that allocation for personnel
emoluments must be supported by IPPD for personnel requirements.

In the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

7. Delay in Completion of Projects

The statement of financial position reflects property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.3,510,470,703 which includes work-in-progress amount of Kshs.2,488,603,607 as
disclosed in Note 26 to the financial statements. Review of payment vouchers and other
documents revealed that the University made payments totaling Kshs.22,791,388 during
the year under review to two of the four major projects.

7.1. Stalled Construction of Ultra-Modern Library at Main Campus

Gulf Fabricators Limited was contracted by Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of
Science and Technology for the construction of modern Library at main campus, contract
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sum of Ksh408,787,407 signed on 10 June, 2019 and
BN i ' the cont
hand over the project before 28 October, 2019. niractorwas to complete and

As per the Project Status Report done on 20 November, 2023, the origi

varied upwards by Kshs.63,177,000 to a revised contract sum of ngrl]r:‘a;cgggicg?v‘vﬁ
Juqe, 2921 _the main contractor sought a further extension of time of 19 wéeks’but the
Unwersﬂy_ did not approve the request and hence took procession of the site however,
Gulf Fabricators contested this action and lodged an arbitration against this matter.

The pnwers‘ty went ahead and set up a Project Implementation committee, assigned a
specific Clerk of works to the project and adopted the works program prepared by the
contractor. A consulting team (Axonometric Systems Limited) was appointed to design
and oversee the construction. On 1 December, 2021, the University brought in a new
contractor through a competitive tender process and signed a contract for completion of
the Ultra-modern Library with Pacific General Works Limited for a contract sum of
Kshs.119,414,971. On 21 October,2022 after the tendering process, the University
awarded a specialist roof contractor Zenith Steel Fabricator Limited for the supply,
fabrication and installation of the roof at accost of Kshs.15,200,000 and this revised the

total contract sum of completion to Kshs.134,614,970. The roof had been delivered on
sight awaiting raising of the beams to support the roof structure.

The contractor had applied for the extension of time on 17 March, 2023 for 32 weeks
which was approved making the revised end date of the projects to 7 November,2023.

The project had accumulated 4 certificates amounting to Kshs.56,467,693 and all the
certificates had been honored.

During the audit verification of the project done on 3 October, 2024 the project was at
42% complete. From this, it was not possible to confirm the exact date of completion of
the project since there is no formal signed contract agreement with any contractor for

completion of the Ultra-modern Library hence the value of the money used so far could
not be felt.

7.2.Delayed Completion of Research Complex at the Miyandhe Campus

Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Technology entered into contract with
Danaff Kenya Company Limited for the construction of Research complex at Miyandhe
Campus with a contract sum of Kshs.434,180,130. The contract was signed on

20 March, 2019, Contract number: JOOUST/ONT/03/2018/2019 for a period of seventy-
three (73) weeks.

Review of the Project progress Report done on 20 November, 2023 it stated shows that
the progress of works done was at 88% completion level. However, audit verification of
the project done on 3 October, 2024, revealed that the project was commissioned on
14 January, 2023 without a completion certificate and handing over report. Further, the

project has pending works of water installation, electrical installation and land scaping
that has not been done.
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In 11 May,2023, the Consultants prepared a financial appraigal. that fffjﬁdgg Lhe final
contract amount of Kshs.525,159,353 resulting to a total variation of Kshs, 493,977

which exceeded the allowable contract limit of 15% as stipulated in the Contract
agreement.

In addition, Physical verification of the project revealed that the; contractor has suspgnded
works from 1 July via letter dated 28 May, 2023 citing pending payments of certificate
number 20 and 21 amounting to Ksh21,643,857. The letter further stated that the
contractor was unable to mobilize more resources to complete pending works., The

pending payments which the University owes the contractor still are accruing interest
which is increasing.

Also, the summary of the project implementation status report showing the total amounts

disbursed to the contractor was not provided to confirm the exact amounts which the
contractor has been paid to date.

Achiego Campus for the contract sum of Kshs.650,024,181 Contract number
JOOUST!ONTIO112018!201 9. The contract was signed on 20 March, 2019 for a period of
2 years ending on 9 April, 2021. In November 2020 the main contractor officially

complained of lack of reliable power sources at the site and was forced to acquire 100KVA
generator at a cost of Kshs.4.5 million and requested to be reimbursed.

The contractor applied for extensions of contract period as fo
one year to 28 March,2022 and it was awarded to 8 December,
for extension of time to 8 December, 2022 was awarded

contractor required another extension of 12 months ending
awarded.

llows: 29 March, 2021 for
2021. 11 November, 2021
and 11 November, 2020 the
8 December, 2023 was also

In 2 March, 2020 the contractor requested for variation o
Kshs.19,159,205 and during this time of consideration of the
variation, the consultants also carried out a _ﬁnancial appr
30 May, 2023 and came up with a financial appraisal amountin

f contract in excess of
contractor's request for
aisal on the project in
g to Kshs.40,?12,204.

As per the Project Implementation Status Repqrt done on 20 November, 2023 the project
had so far accumulated 12 certificates amounting to a total Kshs.228,899 456 and a total
retention of Kshs.22,899,456. The contractor is claiming a NoNn-payment of three
certificates 10,11 and 12 amounting to Kshs.30,051,934. The site Works had been
suspended since January, 2023 and the contractor had not formally indicateq the
suspension.

i i i i 2024 the project was at 40% done, the
During the audit verification done on 3 October_, :
c:r:trz?ctor wasn't on site and no sign of resuming soon since no formal agreement had
been made with any contractor for the completion of the Tuition Complex.
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7.4. Stalled Construction of Administration Block

Jo{nm EA Company Limited was contracted by Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of
Science and Technology for the construction of an Administration block, Contract number
JOOUST/ONT/02/2018/2019 and Contract sum of Kshs.739,705,635 dated
20 March, 2019 for a duration of 104 weeks. As per the status report done on
20 November, 2023 on the project the contractor had applied for extension of time/period
as follows; 26 February, 2021 for one year to 1 March, 2022 and it was approved, second
request for extension was done on 1 March, 2022 for 490 days to 4 July, 2023 and was
granted till 31 March, 2023 and also another request done on 24 February, 2023 for
another 12 months which was to end on 31 March, 2024 and was also granted. The
contractor had been issued with two default notices on 16 August, 2019 and
24 March, 2020 citing some issues like very little progress on site and that the contractor
did not respond to instructions to submit program of works.

On 5 December, 2022, the contractor requested to sub-contract works to M/S Skylight
Limited to undertake the superstructure, walling and external facade and it was approved
at no variation. The Sub-contractor, M/S Skylight Limited, began the walling works but
abandoned the site since January, 2023. The main contractor again requested to sub-
contract M/S Global Reach Logistics on 13 September, 2023 revoking the earlier sub-
contractor's proposal and this was not approved by the PIC.

The project had accumulated 10 certificates amounting to Kshs.220,388,641 and a
retention of Kshs.18,631,743. The contractor is claiming a non-payment of
Kshs.1,821,154 which is accumulating an interest and the contractor suspended the site
since May, 2023 but did not formally indicate the suspension. No any written agreement
between the contractor and JOOUST hance we couldn't confirm on how and when will
the project get completed.

During the project verification done on 3 September, 2024 it was noted that the project
progress status was at 30% and the pending works may require one year till completion
if funds are availed.

Also, during the audit period it was noted that the main contractor was paid and advance
payment of Kshs.52,754,361 excluding VAT but the breakdown of the works done under
this certificate of payment to quantify the amount was not availed.

7.5. Construction of 1000 Capacity Students’ Hostel

During the audit period it was noted that Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science
and Technology contracted Sasah General Merchants on February, 2010 for the
construction of 1000 capacity students hostel Contract number BUC/P9/2011/2012, sum
of Kshs.663,941,731 which was for a duration of three years. According to the final
certificate of payment done to the contractor, certificate number 5, which was done on
9 June, 2023 of Kshs.4,813,158 showed a total certified amount of Kshs.844,058,672
which had been disbursed to the Contractor. The variations done increasing the initial
contract sum by Kshs.180,116,941 could not be confirmed since the initial bid document
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certificate of payment done to the contractor, certificate number 5, which was done on
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which had been disbursed to the Contractor. The variations done increasing the initial
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wasn't availed for verification. As per the verification do’?e tgﬁezofitf ;uw;fxigrﬁfceat?: X
completion certificate and the handing over report wasni.a of Contract manage iy
From this, the compliance with Regularity and effectiveness Jemen
practices wasn't confirmed.

7.6.Stalled Supply, Delivery, Installation, Training of Users and Commissioning of
Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Software

Mis DSL Systems and Solutions Ltd were contracted in November, 2019 at a contract
Sum of Kshs. 16,030,004 and were expected to implement a new software system whu?h
was to support automation and processes in finance, human resources, supply chain
Services, academic, inventory, students e-portal etc. The work was expected to be
completed and handed over in November, 2020. However, despite extending the contract
period by another 14 months to January, 2022, the vendor was yet to complete and hand
over the project as at time of audit in October, 2024 and Kshs. 12,232,283 of the contract
Sum had been paid. During the year under review no progress report availed to confirm
the progress of the installation but review of the past Management meeting minutes held

on 9 September, 2022 on the progress on the ERP Implementation revealed the following
status:

i. Academic Department- 70% had been completed and the Department was
experiencing some challenges.

i. Student portal- was 60% effective which implies that the a

mount payable by
students was not accurately captured.

iii. Finance Department- It was 98% complete. The vendor was yet to customize

the general ledger chart of accounts to the template which is usable by the
Department.

iv. Interbank transfer- level of implementation was at 0%,

V. Procurement- Reporting level at 0% as the reports could not be generated
through the system among others.

8. Non-Compliance with Climate Regulations Requirements

It has been noted during the audit that Jaramogi Oginga Odinga Universfty has not fully
complied with the requirements set out under Article 69(f) of the Constitution, Climate
Change Amendment Act, 2023 & The Climate Change (Carbon Mar-kets) R‘_—:‘gu!ations,
2024, National Climate Change Action Plan Il 20?3-2927 regarc_hng environmental
protection and management. Upon review of The University Strategic plan 2023-2027,
the following anomalies were noted;
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The University was to conduct research and training initiatives on climate smart

agriculture; however, this was not supported reports on the research and training
that were conducted.

L. '_I'he University has undertaken several projects that have potential environmental
1mpa_cts, but no reports on Environmental Impact Assessments documented as
required by the Environmental Management and Coordination Act (EMCA).

iii. Thej University has not carried out periodic environmental audits for ongoing
projects, as mandated by both Article 69(f) and the relevant statutory provisions
under EMCA. There are no records to indicate that audits were conducted to
assess the environmental performance and compliance of the projects.

There are no structured systems or processes in place to continually assess the
environmental effects and ensure compliance with environmental standards.

Also, the University has not submitted the required environmental reports to the
National Environment Management Authority (NEMA) for review and oversight,
which is a key requirement in the environmental monitoring process.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 3000 and ISSAI 4000. The standards
require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
assurance about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in
the financial statements comply in all material respects, with the authorities that govern

them. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, except for the effect(s) of the matter(s) described in the Basis for
Conclusion on Effectiveness of Internal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
section of my report, | confirm that nothing else has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion
1. Under Collection of Revenue

The statement of financial performance reflects total revenue of Kshs.2,206,191,928
which is Kshs.10,029,964 less than the previous year amount of Kshs.2,216,221,892. If

the trend is not reverse, the shortfall will impact negatively on service delivery to the
institution.
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: ffects the execution of
; ue negatively al :
i der-collection of reven i~ non-delivery of services to the
g:at::eg ‘Lcrté?rit;rfzﬁa uaI::tivities and therefore results in non delivery
University.

2. Long Outstanding Payables (Pending Bills)

Kshs.90,195,768
The statement of financial position reflects trade payables balanwc;":-:r Or];view i cEerne
which as disclosed in Note 29 to the financial statementg. Ho_wehad. aiding bills abiovs
payable records revealed that as at 30 June, 2024, the upwersxty F:j o Re forir it
60 days amounting to Kshs.61,300,388 relating to previous yearstﬁn PEMA regulation
charge in the payments of the consecutive years contrary to the

42(1),2015-National government and the national treasury circular no.7/2023 on payment
of pending bills.

Further, Management did not have a plan/Policy for resolving accrued pending bills, which

may include having a pending bill verification and resolution_ committee to help resolve
pending bills and mitigate the huge accumulation of the pending bills.

It was not clear why the management did not consider settling the long overdue pending
bills as first charge with availability of funds.

3. Non-compliance with Financial Reporting Requirements for Payments
The statement of financial
Kshs.278,478,610 as dis
ledgers provided for audi
services does not show

performance reflects use of goods and services expenditure of
closed in Note 13 to the financial statements. Review of the
t revealed that the schedule of payments of use of goods and

details of transactions such as date, payment voucher number,
A ification per account codes, description and amount paid but
instead contained details of stores requisitions and cost

of items issued without adequate
narration of the nature of expenditure.

It was therefore, not possible to confirm the stores reéquisitions in the cash book and other
financial records.

4. Use of Long Overdue Uncommission ERP System

Compliance Audit of the Information Technology Department of J

aramogi Qqi i
University of science and technology revealed that the institution p?glcagelgg:ngdénrgg
system that they started using since October, 2020 to the time of audit, This syste
supposed to integrate different modules with different functions including HR mrndw,as
finance module etc to help attain the mandate and run the university Howeveo ltjhe'
following weaknesses in the use of that system were observed with respect to therERs
system and therefore it was not clear on the effectiveness, efficiency and econamm
value of the system in running and attaining the mandate of the uniy ol

ersity,
I The University was using the ERP system that had

not been Commissioned d
fully automated to all the modules and this created a gap in handling i s
from one module to another, e " Information

Report of the Auditor-Gener lonJ, i Oci : ey T g e T
7 g fz e eral onJaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Technology for the Year ended

12



II.  The ERP system was at 49% implementation status as at June 2024 for the
contractc::d modules which is risky for the university as most modules had not been
fully put into use. Further to this, the module owners have raised many issues with
the EBP system as per the ERP implementation status and the management has
not given a report on how they have managed to address each issues raised as
per the ERP implementation report especially under academic management where
PPSP admission is still manually done and the other components of this modules
still not 100% efficient. The finance management module also having so many
gaps including the general ledger, chart of accounts and financial reports not fully
developed in the system and many other gaps which exposes the University to
higher risk of fraud and losses with the continued use of the system with so many

gaps.

. The vendor of the ERP system procured has not been able to activate some
modules which have not been able to make them go live as per the ERP
implementation report, dated September 2024 this thereby questioning the need
to procure the ERP system.

IV. The vendor had not initiated no cost contract extension of the ERP system
considering that the existing contract expired in Ju ne,2022 therefore continued use
of the un-commissioned ERP system exposed the institution to the risk of data
loss, financial and legal obligation once the vendor stops addressing the issues
and pending gaps since the contract had already expired.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk Management and overall governance
were operating effectively in all material respects. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

5. Weaknesses in Internal Audit Function

51. Inadequate Staffing

The Internal Audit Unit has five (5) in-post staff against the expected approved
establishment of ten (10). A review of the staff establishment for the University indicates
that the Internal Audit Unit to effectively deliver its role, has a provision of Ten (10) as per
the establishment. As such, there is a likelihood of failing to achieve the set targets as per

the work plan.

5.2. Delayin Submission of Annual Audit Work Plan

The Internal Audit Annual Workplan for JOOUST Internal Audit Unit was approved in the
Audit Committee meeting of 24 July, 2023, and approved by the Vice Chancellor on
24 August, 2024. For the purposes of inclusion in the budget of the University by the
Accounting Officer, the work plan thus might not be considered, considering the budget
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d not achieve the objectives ¢

udit woul
making process timelines. As such, the Internal A

the work plan.

d with Governance
Responsibilities of the Management and those Charge

i tation of these financia|
. ion and fair presente
' nsible for the preparation nting Standards (Accrual
ﬁ:g:gsmse Tr: ;scézfc?:nce with International Public Sectoréc&f::mgegmen t determines is
Basis) and for maintaining effective inlernallcontrols a vt wt-are ewe o mristediar
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statemen sment. of the-affectivariess
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its asses
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

: ; ing t
In preparing the financial statements, Management i responSlble for”s:géssggtte’:g
University's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosmg, as app tin' 1583
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
Management is aware of the intention to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the

Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015,

for ensuring that the
financial statements

control environment.

Auditor-General’s Responsibilities for the Audit



to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

In condgctmg the audit, Article 229(6) of the Constitution also requires that | express a
conc}uston on whether or not in all material respects, the activities, financial transactions
and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the authorities
that govern them and that public resources are applied in an effective way. In addition, |
consngler the entity's control environment in order to give an assurance on the
effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and
systems in accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015.

Further, | am required to submit the audit report in accordance with Article 229(7) of the
Constitution.

Detailed description of my responsibilities for the audit is located at the Office of the
Auditor-General's website at: https:ﬂwww.oaqkenva.qo.ka/audilor-qenerals—
responsibilities-for-audit/. This description forms part of my auditor's report.

Mm
FCP CBS

AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

27 December, 2024

Report of the Auditor-General on Jaramogi Oginga Odi

nga University of Science and Technology for the year ended
30 June, 2024
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14. Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30 June 2024

‘r_ Notes | 2023/20234 202212023
- Kshs Kshs
rRevenuc from non-exchange transactions
Fl‘mnsﬁ:rs from other government entities 06 787,300,422 1,071,976,228
| Research Grants 7 599,882,001 703,530,897
mmauuns 3 - 1,016,646
r 1,387,182,513 1,776,523,771
‘Tlc\'cnuc from Exchange Transaction
| Rendering services 9 746,475,860 347,700,857
\l::l.:il;:“lz;:muu from Facilities and 0 14,483,529 12,634,708
{ Other Income 1 57,889,425 79,356,556
L 319,009,414 439,698,121
{\'rmai Revenue 2.206,191,928 2,216,221,892
FExpcndilurc
[ Employee costs 12 1,256,288,090 1,223,603,004
| Use of goods & services 13 278,478,610 227,717,351
Council Expenses 14 16,487,085 17,501,275
Depreciation and Amortization expenses 15 39,709,482 43,024,827
Repairs and Maintenance 16 16,528,409 11,374,913
Research Expenses 17 601,310,851 706,050,302
Finance Costs 18] 12,018,335 13,573,081 |
Total Expenses 2,220,820,861 2,242,844,752
Gain on Foreign Exchange ‘I'ransactions 19 9,996 4,102,425
Loss on Revaluation of Biological Assels 20 (105,000) (275,000)
Gain on sale of fixed assets 21 - 522,000
Deficit for the year (14,563,338) (22,273,436)

The notes set out on pages 7 to 44 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
The Financial Statements sct out on pages | to 49 were signed on behalf of the Council by

{{“’I at M\/
3 ALY 4,

Prof. Emily A. Akuno

Vice-Chancellor
ICPAK M/No:6788

Date '?) ﬁf?{ijuj&\} Date ;Lajt WJ’WDa[e

CPA George K. Aduda
Chief Finance Officer

Prof. Shem O. Wandiga
Chairman of Council
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14. Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30 June 2024

Notes 2023/20234 20222023
Kshs Kshs
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transters from other government entities 6 787,300,422 1,071,976,228
Rescarch Grants 7 599,882,091 703,530,897
Donations 8 F 1,016,646
1,387,182,513 1,776,523,771
| Revenue from Exchange Transaction
| Rendering services 9 746,475,860 347,706,857
Rental Revenue from Facilities and
\ equipment 10 14,483,529 12,634,708
| Other Incomne 11 57,889,425 79,356,556
( 819,009,414 439,698,121
\r'l‘utnl Revenue 2,206,191,928 2,216,221,892
{ Expenditure
[ Employee costs 12 1,256,288,090 1,223,603,004
Usc of poods & services 13 278,478,610 227,717,351
Council Expenses 14 16,487,085 17,501,275
Depreciation and Amortization expenses 15 39,709,482 43,024,827
Repairs and Maintenance 16 16,528,409 11,374,913
Research Expenses 17 1,310,851 706,050,302
Finance Costs 18 ‘__Hﬁ_l_i,ﬁi 2,335 13,573,081
Total Expenses 2,220,820,861 2,242,844,752
Gain on Foreign Exchange Transactions 19 9,996 4,102,425
Loss on Revaluation of Biological Assels 20 (105,000) (275,000)
Gain on sale of fixed assets 21 - 522,000
Deficit for the year (14,563,338) (22,273,436)

The notes set out on pages 7 to 44 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
The Financial Statements set out on pages 1 to 49 were signed on behalf of the Council by

ﬁl\k

Prof. Emily A. Akuno
Vice-Chancellor

Date ‘0 ﬁ . 17‘% .T?.’ff%.‘f:‘. .

DB

(f“ CPA George K. Aduda
Chief Finance Officer
ICPAK M/No:6788

Date WW}WDNB

- - o

Prof. Shem O. Wandiga
Chairman of Council

REXIMECET
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15. Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2024

| Notes | 2023/20234 | 2022/2023
Kshs Kshs
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 22 613,250,163 291,060,340
Receivables from exchange transactions 23 233,487,219 280,421,725
Receivables from Non- exchange transactions 24 67,070,033 28861307
Inventories 25 12,554,809 17,017,343
Total Current Assets 926,362,224 617,360,715
Non-Current assets
Property, plant and equipment 26| 3,510,470,703 | 3,531,299,331
Intangible assets 27 12,688,283 12,232,283
Biological Assets 28 290,000 395,000
Total Non-Current Assets 3,523,448,986 | 3,543,926,614
TOTAL ASSETS 4,449,811,210 | 4,161,287,329
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables 29 90,195,768 101,057,223
Refundable deposits from cuslomers 30 85,142,309 72,814,914
-Prepayments and Deposits 31 60,404,855 63,011,242
Current portion of Bank Loan 32 21,974,577 19,771,058
Deferred income 33 406,972,445 165,316,712
Employee benefit obligation 34 177,276,030 110,230,837
Total Current Liabilitics 841,965,984 532,201,985
Non-Current Liabilities
Bank Loan 32 55,216,575 76,893,355
Total Non-Current Liabilities 55,216,575 .76,893,355
Total Liabilities 897,182,559 609,095,340
Net Assets 3,552,468,051 | 3,552,191,989
Capital Grants Reserves 35 3,552,376,383 | 3,537,376,383
Revenue Reserve 36 252,268 14,815,606
Total Net assets 3,552,468,051 | 3,552,191,989

The financial statements set out on pages | to 49 were signed on behalf of the Council by:

@_L Al

Prof. Emily A. Akuno
Vice Chancellor

s

(? CPA George Aduda
Chief Finance Officer

ICPAK No. 6788

Date &}It‘&p}- MDatc
2

Prof. Shem O. Wandiga
Chairman - University Council |

e e e ———E




fing Science and Technology

Jaramogi Oginga Odin ga Uni versity of 30,2023

Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended June
—
16. Statement of Changes in Net Assets for the year ended 30 June 2024
C‘apllal Revenue ,
Grants reserves lotal
rescrves ' '
Kshs Kshs Kshs
As at July 1
y 1,2022 3,458,515,076 | 37,089,011 3,495,604,087
Defici B
eficit for the year (22.273,436) (22,273,436)
Capital development grants 78,861,307 78,861,3
t ¥ = L] L 12 "7
As at June 30
,2023 3537376383 | 14,815,575 3.552,191,958
As at July 1, 2023
' 3,537,376,383 | 14,815,575
Surplus for the year o bt
. (14,563,338
il eriommertt — ) (14,723,938)
As at June 30, 2 : = b
024 3,552,376,383 252,237 3,552,468,051
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17. Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2024

Notes 2023/20234 2022/2023
Kshs Kshs
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Transfers from other governments entitics 6| 787,300,422 1,071,976,228
Research grants 7] 599,882,091 703,530,897
Donations 8 0 1,016,646
Rendering of services 9| 746,475,860 347,706,857
Rental revenue from facilities and equipment 10 14,483,529 12,634,708
Other income 1 57,889,425 79,356,556
Finance income 18 9,996 4,102,425
Gain on Disposal of Fixed Asset 21 0 522,000
Total Receipts 2,206,041,323 2,220,846,316
Payments
Employee Costs 12 1 1,256,288,090 1,223,603,004
Use of Goods and Services 13| 278,478,610 227,717,331
Council Expenses 14 16,487,085 17,501,275
Depreciation and Amortization 15 39,709,482 43,024,827
Repairs and Maintenance 16 16,528,409 11,374,913
Rescarch Expenses 17 601,310,851 706,050,302
Finance costs 18 12,018,335 13,573,081
Loss on revaluation of biological assets 20 105,000 275000
Total Payments 2,220,925,861 2,243,119,752
(14,563,338) (22,273,436)
Add back: Depreciation 13 39,709,482 43,024,827
Gain/Loss on revaluation 20 105,000 275,000
Gain on Revaluation of Fixed Asset 21 - (522,000)
Operating surplus before working capital changes 25,090,544 20,504,391
(Increase)/decrease in Inventory 25 4,462,534 2,639,589
(Increase)/decrease in Receivables 23-24 8,404,578 (44,108,930)
Increase/(decrease) in Payables 29-34 | 313,881,682 193,656,899
Net cash flows from operating activities 351,839,338 172,691,948
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of PPE and intangible assets 26 (24,880,854) (99,669,551)
Increase in Intangible Assets (456,000) (805,281)
Cash Proceeds from Disposal of Fixed Assels 522,000
Net cash Mows used in investing activitics (25,336,854) (99,952,832)
Cash flows from financing activitics
Capital development grants received 15,000,000 78,861,307
Repayment of borrowings (19,473,260) (17,517,557)
Net cash flows used in {inancing activities (4,473,260) 61,343,750
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 322,189,823 134,082,867
Cash and cash equivalent at period start 291,060,340 156,977,473
Cash and cash equivalent at period end 22 613,250,163 291,060,340
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19. Notes to the Financial Statements

1. General Information

JOOUST is established by and derives its authority and accountability fr(;m théh[:;:;‘:-cggl[;s ?ﬁt
2012 and the Jaramog; Oginga Odinga University of Science and T(?chno o_g)" d i E&en q - Th
University is wholly owned by the Govemnment of Kenya and is domlcﬂfe In ; t)’ . re
| University’s principal activity is the provision of University education thrgugh Integrates! traning,
' rescarch and community outreach for sustainable development.

2. Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement at
i re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment, marketable securities and
| financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and
actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of

estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercisc judgement in the process of
applying the University's accounting policies,

\ 3. Adoption of New and Revised Standards
|

L. New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but nor yet effective in the
| ended 30 June 2024

Standard Effective date and impact:
IPSAS 43 Applicable I January 2025

year

| The standard sets out the principles for the reco
i and disclosure of leases. The objective is to en

relevant information in a manner that faithful]
'I' information gives a basis for users of financia

leases have on the financial position, financia
| University.

gnition, measurement, presentation,
sure that lessees and lessors provide
Y represents those transactjons. This

| statements to assess the effect

that
| performance

and cash flows of the
The new standard requires entities to reco
right of use assets and lease liabiljties,
(The university does not any
| financial statements).

IPSAS 44: Applicable I January 2025

! Non- Current | The Standard requires, Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale
| Assets Held | to be measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and

i. for Saleand | the depreciation of such assets to cease and:

- Discontinued | Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented

| Operations separately in the statement of financial position and the results of discontinued

|

gnise, measure and present information on

leases hence this standard has no impact on g
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Standard Effective date and impact:

has no impact on its financial statements).

operations to be presented separately in the statement of financial performance.
(The university does not hold any non-current assets for sale hence this standard

I IPSAS 45- | Applicable I* January 2025

Property Plant | The standard supersedes IPSAS 17 on Property, Plant and Equipment. IPSAS 45
and has additional guidance/ new guidance for heritage assets, infrastructure assets and
Equipment measurement. Heritage assets were previously excluded from the scope of IPSAS
17 in IPSAS 45, heritage assets that satisfy the definition of PPE sha

11 be recognised

SE—

as assets if they meet the criteria in the standard. [PSAS 45 has an additional
application guidance for infrastructure assets, implementation guidance and

illustrative examples. The standard has clarified existing principles e.g valuation of

land over or under the infrastructure assets, under- maintenance of assets and
distinguishing significant parts of infrastructure assets.
(The university does not hold heritage hence this standard has no impact on ils
financial statements)

IPSAS 46
Measurement

Applicable I January 2025
The objective of this standard was to improve measurement guidance across IPSAS
by:
i. Providing further detailed guidance on the implementation of commonly
used measurement bases and the circumstances under which they should

be used.

Jii. Clarifying transaction costs guidance to enhance consistency across IPSAS;
iii. Amending where appropriate guidance across IPSAS related to
measurement at recognition, subsequent measurement and measurement

related disclosures.

The standard also introduces a public sector specific measurement bases called the
current operational value.

(The University shall apply the standard as and when it becomes applicable)

IPSAS 47-
Revenue

Applicable I’ January 2026

This standard supersedes [PSAS 9- Revenue from exchange transactions, [IPSAS 11
Construction contracts and IPSAS 23 Revenue from non- exchange transactions.
This standard brings all the guidance of accounting for revenue under one standard.
The objective of the standard is to establish the principles that an University shall
apply to report useful information to users of financial statements about the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flow arising from revenue
transactions.

( The University shall apply the standard as and when it becomes applicable)

IPSAS 48-
Transfer
Expenses

Applicable 1 January 2026
The objective of the standard is to establish the principles that a transfer provider

shall apply to report useful information to users of financial statements about the




. - ; T relinology
Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science mf‘:’ T‘(;mk’d Jiﬂle 30, 2024
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year

Standard

m———
Effective date and impact:

d cash flow arising f;

: cas ror

nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of expenscs z;nf Kl et fmiti n
4 " ) ; 5 - 2T » c

transfer expense transactions. This 1s a new .standdr or p " suc}j

geared to provide guidance to entities that provide transfers on a 5

transfers,

( The University shall apply the standard as and when it becomes applicable)

IPSAS 49-

Retirement

Benefit Plans

Applicable I* January 2026 _ ' o
The objective is to prescribe the accounting and reporting reqmrcmcnt? or the
public sector retirement benefit plans which provide retirement to public sector

employees and other eligible participants. The standard sets the financial statements
that should be presented by a retirement benefit plan.

( The University shall apply the standard as and when it becomes applicable)

ii.  Early adoption of standards

The University did not early

— adopt any new or amended standards in the year 2023/2024.

o 9
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Fees, taxes and fines

The University recognizes revenues from fees, taxes and fines when the event occurs and the asset
recognition criteria are met. To the extent that there is a related condition attached that would giverise
to a liability to repay the amount, deferred income is recognized instead of revenue. Other
non-exchange revenues are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits or service

potential associated with the asset will flow to the University and the fair value of the asset can be
measured reliably.

Transfers from other government entities

Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair value
and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the transfer is
free from conditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential related to the
asset will flow to the University and can be measured reliably. Recurrent grants are recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income. Development/capital grants are recognized in the statement of

financial position and realised in the statement of comprehensive income over the useful life of the
assets that has been acquired using such funds.

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of services

The University recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of completion
when the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is measured
by reference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated labour hours.

Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent
that the expenses incurred are recoverable.

Dividends

Dividends or similar distributions must be recognized when the shareholder’s or the University's right
to receive payments is established.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terins and included in revenue.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) "
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continue )

b) Budget information

th
The original budget for FY 20222023 was approved by the National Asscml;lydozt“in :erjgfjc
Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to l.hf’a approved u g o added ©
with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional apprlopnations ar " hu
the original budget by the University upon receiving the respective approvals 'fl ?rder PSRN A
final budget. Accordingly, the University’s development grant was Kshs 60 million but only Kshs 15
million was disbursed to the University in the period under review. ) .

The University’s budget is prepared on the same basis as the actual income and expenditure 'dlscliosed
in the financial statements. The financial statements and budget are prepared on accrual basis u51.ng a
classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance. A comparison
of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is presented in
the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

In addition to the basis difference, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also made
for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of the financial
statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of

comparison of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial
performance has been presented under section 17 of these financial statements.

¢) Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the
amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the area where the
University operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in net assets is recognized in net assets and

not in the statement of financial performance. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in

the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

d) Sales tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, except:

i) When the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the

taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition
of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included, the net

amount of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part
of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

'
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e) Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount
includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment property at the time that costis
incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-day maintenance of an
investment property. Investment property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at
its fair value at the date of acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured using the cost model and are depreciated over the useful period.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit or service
potential is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use.

f) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. When
significant parts of property. plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
University recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific uscful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Likewise. when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs arc recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a
non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair
value.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis to write down the cost of each asset, or the re-valued
amount, to its residual value over its estimated useful life using the following annual rates:

Description Annual Rate

Buildings 2.5%
‘ Plant, machinery and equipment 20%!

Office equipment 20%
| Computer equipment 33.3%
| Motor vehicles 25%
| Fumniture and fittings 12.5%
| Crockery & Utensils 33.5%
| Library Books 20%;
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j) Financial instruments

’ i ‘ . . |+ % .

IPSAS 41 addresses the classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and
financial liabilitics, introduces new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for

financial assets. The university does not have any hedge relationships and therefore the new hedge

accounting rules have no impact on its financial statements. A financial instrument is any contract that

gives rise to a financial asset of onc University and a financial liability or equity instrument of another

University.

At initial recognition, the University measures a financial asset or financial liability at its fair value
plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not at fair value through surplus or
deficit, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial assetor

financial liability.

a) Financial assets

Classification of financial assets

The University classifics its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value
through net asscts/ equity or fair value through surplus and deficit on the basis of both its management
model for financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. A
financial asset is measured at amortized cost when the financial assct is held within a management
model whose objective is 10 hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. A financial asset is measurcd at fair
value through net assets/ equity if it is held within the management model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the
jve rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and

financial asset ¢
ing. A financial assct shall be measured at fair value through

interest on the principal amount outstand
surplus or deficit unless it is measured at amortized cost or fair value through net assets/ equity unless
the University has made irrevocable election at initial recognition for particular investments in equity

instruments.

Subsequent measurement
Based on the business model and the cash flow characteristics, the University classifies its financial

assets into amortized cost or fair value categories for financial instruments. Movements in fair value
are presented in either surplus or deficit or through net assets’ equity subject to certain criteria being

met.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Contmucd)

Amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows wher B.thOSC cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, and that are not designated at fair value through surplus or
deficit, are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on an instrument that is subsequently measured
at amortized cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognized in profit or loss when the assct

is de-recognized or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through net assets/ equity

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured
at fair value through net assets/ equity. Movements in the carrying amount are taken through net
assets, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and forei gn exchange

gains and losses which are recognized in surplus/deficit. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized at fair values less allowances for any uncollectible
amounts. Trade and other receivables are assessed for impairment on a continuing basis. An estimate
is made of doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end.

Fair value through surplus or deficit

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or fair value through net assets/
are measured at fair value through surplus or deficit. A business model where the University manages
financial assets with the objective of realizing cash flows through solely the sale of the assets would
result in a fair value through surplus or deficit model.

equity

Impairment

The University assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit loss (*ECL’) associated with
its financial assets carried at amortized cost and fair value through net assets/equity. The University
recognizes a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date. Critical estimates and significant

judgments made by management in determining the expected credit loss (ECL) are set out in Note
23c.
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b) Financial liabilities

Classification
The University classifies its liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized co

liabilitics measured through profit or loss.

st except for financial

k) Inventories
Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received

through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is its
fair value at the date of acquisition. Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and

conditions are accounted for, as follows:
i) Raw materials: purchase cost using th
ii) Finished goods and work in progress: cost 0
manufacturing overheads based on the norma

e weighted average cost method.
f direct materials and labour and a proportion of

1 operating capacity but excluding borrowing

costs.
After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lowe
to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or fora nominal charge,
that class of inventory is measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost. Net realizable

ue is the estimated sclling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the estimated costs of
he sale, exchange, or distribution. Inventories

r of cost and net realizable value. However,

val
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make t

are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the ordinary course of

operations of the University.

1) Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the University has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or
service potential will be required to scttle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Where the University expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a scparate asset only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the
statement of financial performance net of any reimbursement.

Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts

The University makes provisions for bad and doubtful debts at the following rates:

Period Outstanding Percentage Provision
Below 8 months 0%

8 — 12 Months 10%

13 — 24 Months 25%

25 months and above 100%

16 i S e
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Conti

m) Contingent liabilities

N . ils of any contingencies iy ﬁ
The University does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details y

T w of resources embodying
the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflo
economic benefits or service potential is remote.

n) Contingent assets

The University does not recognize a contingent asset but discloses details of a p(fsSlblC assct whose
existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain futu'rc events not
wholly within the control of the University in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent assc.:[s
are assessed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial

statements. If it has become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential
will arise and the asset’s value can be measured

reliably, the asset and the related revenue are
recognized in the fj

nancial statements of the period in which the change occurs.

0) Nature and purpose of reserves

The University creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. The capital reserve

relates to items of property, plant and equipment developed from capital grants from the National
Government and inherited from the former Bondo Teachers Training College. Any sumplus realized in
any given financial year from the operations of the University shall be charge
and shall be used by the Council in furtherance of its objectives as outlined
deficit realized in any given financial year shall alized surplus held in the
revenue reserves.

p) Changes in accounting policies and estimates
The University recognizes the effects of chan

ges in accounting policy retros
changes in accounting policy are applied pros

i ‘ pectively. The effeots of
pectively if retrospective appli

cation is impractical,
q) Employee benefits
Retirement benefit plans

employees. Defined contribution plans are
rsity pays fixed contributions ingg 5 Separate



Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Technology
Annual Report and Financial Statemen ts for the year ended June 30, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the projected unit eredit method basis.
Deficits identified are recovered through lump sum payments or increased future contributions on a
proportional basis to all participating eployers. The contributions and lump sum payments reduce

the post-employment benefit obligation.

r) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted
of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominate
statement of financial position reporting date by applying tl

differences arising from the settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at rates different
from those at which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or
expenses in the period in which they arise.

for at the ruling rate of exchange on the date
d in foreign currency arc reported at the
\e exchange rate on that date. Exchange

s) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and equipment.

Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or
constructed and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when the construction of the
asset is complete. Further borrowing cosls are charged to the statement of financial performance.

t) Related parties
person or an entity with the ability to exert control

The University regards a related party as a
individually or jointly or to exercise significant influence over the University, or vice versa. Members
and comprise the Members of the Council, the

of key management ar¢ regarded as related partics
Vice-Chancellor and senior managers.

u) Service concession arrangements

The University analyses all aspects of
determining the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In particular, where a

private party contributes an asset to the arrangement, the University recognizes that asset when, and
only when, it controls or regulates the services the operator must provide together with the asset, to

service concession arrangements that it enters into in

whom it must provide them, and at what price.
In the case of assets other than ‘whole-of-life’ assets, it controls, through ownership, beneficial

entitlement or otherwise — any significant residual intcrest in the asset at the end of the arrangement
Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair value. To the extent that an asset has been
recognized, the University also recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration

paid or reccived.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

v) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term depo.sus on call a‘nd
highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, Whlf}h are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes 11:1 valu_c. Bank
account balances include amounts held at various commercial banks at the end of th-e hnanfilal year.
Short-term cash imprests and advances to authorised public officers and/or institutions which were
not surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year are accounted for in accounts

receivables.

w) Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or

reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

X) Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial

year end with a significant impact on the
financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2024,

5. Significant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the University's financial Statements in conformity with [PSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the re
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contin
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assum

outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in
future periods.

ported amounts of
gent liabilities, at the end of the
ptions and estimates could result in

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estim

reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The University based its
nancial statements were
velopments may change

ation uncertainty at the

assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated fi
prepared. However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future de

due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the University. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140

T — 19
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Significant Judgments and Sonrces of Fatimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Uscelful lives and residual value

The uscful hves and residual values of assets are assessa! wsing the followmg indicators to inform
potential future use and value from dieposal.

a)  The condition of the asset hased on the assessment of experts employed by the Umveruty

h) The nature of the asset. ts susceptibility and adaptability to changes in technology e
Provesses

<) The nature of the processes 1n which the asset s deployved

d) Avalamlity of funding to replace the asset

¢) Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Pronisions

Provirons were tamsed and management determined an estimate hased on the mformation avatlable

Addinonal disclosare of these eshimates of provisions s mcluded in Note 40
Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the

oblipation a the reporting date, and are discounted to present value where the effect 1s material
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6. Transfers from Other Government entities
2023/2024 20222023
Description KShs KShs
Unconditional Grants
¢
Recurrent Capitation Grants 787,300,422 ,071,976,228
Total Capitation Grants 787,300,422 1,071,976,228
b) Transfers from Ministrics, Departments and Agencies (MDAs)
Amount Amount Aiikbie
Name of The Entity |:tcc:gluzed l? detetrey recognised Total
Sending The Grant PRt e saaer in capital transfers
Financial deferred Rand
performance. * income. s
2023/2024 2022/2023
KShs KShs KShs KShs KShs
Ministry of
Education/State
Department for Higher 787,300,422 - | 15,000,000 802,300,422 | 1,071,976 228
Education and T
Research
World Bank - ACEII T
Project 241,365,057 - 241,365,057 54,053,759
Total 787,300,422 | 241,365,057 15,000,000 1,043,665,479 | | 126,029,987
SN SN
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
7. Research grants
[ Description [ 202372024 [ 20222023 ]

21
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KShs KShs
CarboGrass Project 1.348.955
Conflict Violence and Environmental change Project - 3,845,200
Nconatal Sepsis Study : 38 5:000
Mobility Fund 3 69,242
Grassroot Financial Innovation 4,612,599 5,211,091
Wheel Change Project - 571,800
Safe Water and Waste Management 6,996,663 7,200,290
One Health for Vector Born Discascs 656,206 1,152,600
Institutional Dev, NRF 2,205,000 6,718,312
Whose Heritage - 531,000
Common Wealth 371,345 275,000
COVID-19 Containment 2,021,067 2,936,702
Perticipatory Innovation - 695,600
Transformative Innovation 804,451 -
More Crop Per Drop - 87,360
Acheta Domesticus and Gryllus Bima 329,600 -
Healthynsect 6,640,600 6,191,183
Insefoods(ACE 11) 58,070,778 67,922,476
VLIR-IUC Project 50,539,049 11,687,502
Pilot Health Project - 24,320
EDCTP-CDAE 866.100 5,386,235
Parkinsons Awareness (PACKS) 4,951,303 6,875,659
APPEAR 5,673,605 1,380,680
Sweanfun Project 324,520 135,000
TransCII'T 2.545,981 4,870,546
NerveDog 7,320,252 2,226,029
Africa Research Excellence Fund 858,137 203,855
One off Project 314,788 -
Design & Synthesis - 650,839
Agriprenuership 401,896 -
FAO Project 7,091,499 1,800,566
African Centre for Technology Studies 112,000 :
EARC Project - 4,023,575
Afrifoodlinks Project 8,351,905 10,140,088
Kenet Project 1,029,000 3
Erasmus Chain Project 4,472,402 5
HSWT Project 897,800 3
Safe Water AIDS Project 557,600 -
GI1Z Project 3,544,003 .
USAID Boresha Jamii Project 415,972,989 550,333,146
Total 599,882,091 703,530,897
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8.

10.

Rendering of Services

Description 2023/2024 2022{2023

KShs KShs

- 1,016,646

Donations
Total : 1,016,646
Rendering of Services
Description 2023/2024 2022/2023

KShs KShs
Activity Fee 6,624,000 6,710,400
Computer time income 27,613,750 27,685,750
Material Development 2,208,000 1,842,000
Examination Fee 18,789,000 19,124,500
Field Practical work 20,280,000 23,390,000
Library Fee 5,788,500 0,078,000
Maintenance Fee 5,501,500 6,349,500
Registration fee 2,740,250 3,148,000
Students ID 411,200 1,433,500
Students Medical fec 13,659,500 13,690,500
Tuition Fees 640,770,160 234,883,607
Dissertation 2,090,000 3,371,100
Total Revenue 746,475,860 347,706,857
Rental Revenue from Facilities and Equipment
Description 2023/2024 2022/2023

KShs KShs

Students Accommodation Fees 9,876,500 8,076,700
Hall Hire 40,000 87,000
Hire of Transport and Equipment 476,460 140,169
Staff Rent Income 3,636,000 3,476,000
Hire of Gown 236.000 555,250
Other Rental Revenue 30,000 120,000
Lease of land 188,569 179,589
Total 14,483,529 12,634,708
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11. Other Income
Description 2023/2024 2022/2023
KShs KShs
Application Fees 1,398,005 1,374,000
Catering Income 12,635,027 12,135,474
Graduation fees 5,228,350 5,367,350
Library and photocopy incomes 418,790 549,100
Sale of Water 122,335 116,530
Examination Resit 1,620,900 2,871,400
Nursery Income 320,550 352,900
Ethical Review 427,000 947,000
Investment Income 1,079,532 1,286,183
Resecarch Admin Charges 4,563,056 16,254,280
Other Incomes 851,640 1,728,683
De minimis 29,224,241 36,373,656
Total 57,889,425 79,356,556
12. Employee Costs
Description 2023/2024 2022/2023
KShs KShs
Salaries & wages 610,198,934.30 611,554,495.00
Medical Insurance Expenses 87,641.537 $2.374,195.00
Employer contribution to pension schemes 104,539.609.88 100,212,673..00
Housing Allowance 220,887,116.88 215,186,178.00
Housing levy 12,344,602.81 -
National Industrial & Training Levy (NITA) 329,600.00 317,500.00
Internship Expenses 1,703,538.33 2,553,526.50
Student Work Study 607,970.00 341,275.00
Staff Development 5,805,719.00 5,548,957.00
Gratuity/ Terminal Benefits 19,577,009.50 -
Part-Time Lecturers 20,014,636.50 30,050,501.50
Other Allowances™ 172,637,815.80 175,463,703.00
Total 1,256,288,090 1,223,603,004

% Other Allowances include all other allowances paid to employees other than house allowance.
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pt ere wrongly classified yp,.
*Office Entertainment expenses amounting to Kshs 1,606,947 were gly ified unde,

Employee Costs in FY 2022/2023. They have been correctly classified under Use of Goods and

Services and renamed Office Running Expenses. E
13. Use of Goods and Services —
Description 2023/2024 “A0ZEa0m
KShs KShs
Accreditation & curriculum development Expenses 2,768,800 1’767’32(1.
Admission Related expenses 4,729,443 692’12'3_
|_Advertising & Publicity 4,171,331 2’260'7??__
Anti- corruption expenses 8,400 52,600
Audit Fees 580,000 580,000
Bank charges & commissions 545,341 466,498
Bill Boards and Related 235,053 -
Cleaning materials 3,695,876 1,821,935
Committee expenses 6,328,596 5,570,152
Computer Operating Expenses 823,799 1,264,508
Conference & seminars 2,056,707 3,374,690
Cooking Fuel & Gas 697,425 94.780
Disability mainstreaming 55,400 160,140
Electricity expenses 13,295,737 11,043,570
Examination Materials 1,038,562 473915
Gender mainstreaming and HIV Expenses 67,100 112,935
Graduation Expenses 1,176,775 | 8,548.274
ICT expenses 6.422,25?—__ 2,075,398
Insurance Expenses (Property& staff) 13,759,611 14,808,490
Internet Expenses 18,670,619 | 17,432,163
Jooustes Expenses 2,060,080 | 2,932,124
ISO Certification expenses 295,970 | 334,717
Leasc and rental 4,588,055 7,667,089
Library expenses - 126,765
License and Subscriptions 4,402,517 4,808,223
Medical Expenses-Students 3,400,745 2,631,489
Office Running Expenses 1,568,135 1,606,947
Outreach Programmes 1,629,321 390,162
Performance Contract expenses 193,860 157,100
Postal and courier expenscs 208,155 276,139
Professional and legal services 1,592,323 4,978,474]

25



Jaramogi Oginga Odinga Uni versity of Science and Technology
Annual Report and Fin ancial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Use of Goods and Services (Continued)

Purchase of foodstuff 20,775,120 18,974,652
Resource Mobilization 5 145,800
Sanitary Expenses 1,322,100 1,331,236
Security expenses 21,903,752 21,447,700
Senate expenses - 241 ,21_0_
Shows & Exhibitions 2,946,414 109,250

__Sports & Games 2.661,249 2,422,359

Staff Welfarc 2,244,119 1,856,817
Stationery Expenses 9,869,501 5,584,003
Student Activities 6,456,404 7,002,633
Supervision of thesis 7,341,010 8,836,384
Teaching materials 760,562 503,766
Teaching Practice & Field Attachment 18,855,054 7,743,235
Telephone expenses 1,937,079 1,154,112

_Transport operating expenses 15,280,480 14,320,241

Travelling & Accommodation 15,198,431 11,964,427
Uniforms & Clothing 3,487,289 2,171,178
Water & Sewerage expenscs 3,007,224 1,200,337
" Provision for doubtful debts 31,366,798 22,229,226
Total 278,478,610 227,717,351

os amounting to Kshs 1,606,947 were wrongly classified under

*Qffice Entertainment cxpens
cen correctly classified under Use of Goods and

Employee Costs in FY 2022/2023. They have b
Services and renamed Office Running Expenses.

14. Council Expenses
Description 2023/2024 2022/2023
KShs KShs
Honorarium 1,055,745 1,024,355
Sitting allowances 7,010,975 11,683,010
Travel and Subsistence 7,879,965 2,837,586
Capacity Building and Training 540,400 1,956,325
Total 16,487,085 17,501,275
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Desceription 202372024 202272023
KShs KShs
Buildings 25.261,301 25,261,301
Motor Vehicles 1,990,000 1,990,000
Plant & Equipment 3,734,904 5,047,683
Library Books 477.805 056,779
Computers 5,081,738 5010443
Furniture & Fittings 3,163,734 5,058,622
Totl 39,709,482 43,024,827
Repairs and Maintenance
Description 2023/2024 202272023
S KShs KShs

Building repairs and Returbishments 12,130,054 1,228,335
Maintenance of Plant and Equipment 4.398,354 4,140,578
Total 16,528,409 11,374,913
Research Expenses
Description 202372024 2022/2023

KShs KShs
CarboGrass Project

Conflict Violence and Environmental Change

Neonatal Sepsis Study

3845200

Mobility Fund

385,000

2 69,242
Grassroot Financial Innovation 4.612.599 5211091
Wheel Change Project > 571.800
Safe Water and Waste Management 6.996.663 7.200.300 |
One Health tor Vector-Born Discases 656206 1.152.600
Institutional Dev. NRF 2.205.000 6.718.312
Whose Heritage & 531.000
Common Wealth 3715345 275.000
COVID-19 Containment 2.021.067 2.936.702
Perticipatory Innovation R 695.600
Transformative Innovation 804451 N
More Crop Per Drop - R7.360
Acheta Domesticus and Gryllus Bima 329,600 R
Healthynsect 6,640,600 6.191.183
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Research Expenses (Continued)

Description 2023/2024 2022/2023
KShs IKShs
Insefoods(ACE 11) 58,070,778 67,922,476
VLIR-IUC 50,539,049 11,687,502
Pilot Health 2 24,320
EDCTP-CDAE 866,100 5,386,235
Parkinsons Awarencss (PACKS) 4,951,303 6,875,659
| APPEAR 5,673,605 1,380,680
Sweanfun Project 324,520 135,000 |
TransCIIT 2,545,981 4,870,546
NerveDog 7,320,252 2,226,029
Africa Research Excellence Fund 858,137 203,855 |
One off Project 314,788 2 |
Design & Synthesis . 650,839
Agriprenuership 401,896 R
FAO Project 7,091,499 1,800,566
African Centre for Technology Studies 112,000 -
EARC Project - 4,023,575
Afrifoodlinks Project 8.351,905 10,140,088
Kenet Project 1,029,000 -
Erasmus Chain Project 4,472,402 -
HSWT Project 897,800 -
Safe Water AIDS Project 557,600 w
GIZ Project 3,544,003 &
USAID Boresha Jamii Project 415,972,989 550,333,146
University research 1,428,760 2,519,405
Total 601,310,851 706,050,303
18. Finance Costs
Description 2023/2024 2022/2023
KShs KShs
Ist Instalment 4,071,823 4,809,720
2nd Instalment 3,821,651 4,538,573
3rd Instalment 4,124,861 4,224,788
Total 12,018,335 13,573,081
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

19. Gain/Loss on forcign exchange transactions

Description 2023/2024 20322023
KShs KShs
ABSA Dollar 124,395 4,194,762
Equity Bank (114,399) (92,337)
Gain/Loss on exchange transaction 9,996 4,102,425
20. Gain/Loss on Revaluation of Biological Assets
Description 2023/2024 2022/2023
KShs KShs
Balance b/f 395,000 670,000
Closing Balance 290,000 395,000
Loss on Valuation (105,000) (275,000)
21. Gain/Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets
Description 2023/2024 2022/2023
KShs KShs
Gain on Sale of Fixed Assets - 522,000
Gain on sale - 522,000
e
22. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Description 2023/2024 2022/2023
KShs KShs
Current Accounts 561,364,528 217,474,839
" 51,385,636 73,085,503
Others 500,000 500,000
Total 613,250,163 291,060,340
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

21 (a) Detailed Analysis of the Cash and Cash Equivalents

Account Number 2023/2024 2022/2023
Financial institution KShs KShs
a) Current Accounts
Equity Bank
Equity Bondo Project 750261507711 269,350 269350
Equity Account 750294239156 63,011,884 24,142,093
Equity Account Angawa 1260299751274 14,809,962 5,059,424
Equity KLIP | 750298895605 302,717 302,717
Equity KLIP 2 750299070880 233,630 233,630
Equity ACE 11 Project 750271748376 241,022,771 57,681,060
Equity VLIR 750280920794 16,442,356 16,209,557
USAID Boresha Jamii Project 1260280923860 90,655,049 43,728,860
ABSA Bank
ABSA Dollar Account 2024 513 516 3,249,763 15,849,831
Co-operative Bank
Co-operative Bank Siaya 112 92557 09500 53,715,013 15,791,708
Co-operative Bank Jooustess A/c 1141255709 86,737 57,950
KCB Bank Ltd
K.CB Bondo Project 1171196679 31,886,465 33,624,356
KCB Current Account 111 576 6643 479,194 206,231
KCB Development Account 111387 3035 1,960,646 673,468
KCB HELB Account 111 712 2409 43,075,304 3,480,938
KCB Health Pilot Project 1286039975 163,686 163,686
Sub-Total 561,364,528 | 217,474,839
b) Savings Account
KCB Savings Account 111 304 6066 51,385,636 73,085,503
Sub-Total 51,385,636 73,085,503
¢) Others
Cash at hand )
Bank Guarantcc 500,000 500000
Sub-Total 500,000 500000
Grand Total 613,250,163 | 291,060,340
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23. Receivables from Exch ange Transactions

(a) Receivables from Exchange Transactions
Description 202372024 202272023
KShs KShs

Students Debtors 502,144,418 469,824,169
Provision for Doubtful debts (310233.741) (278.888.943)
Staff Imprest 4,821.943 | 8,429.292
Deposit with Suppliers 472,000 472,000
Internzl Debtors 1397.836 4,301,122
Prepaid Expenses 1.989.062 6.558,715
Other Debtors 16.523.532 16233.375
USAID Boresha Jamii Project 13,394,149 53,471,996
Total 233.487.219 280,421,725

(b) Reconciliation for Impairment Allowance on Receivables from Exchange Transactions

Impairment allowance/ provision 202372024 202272023
Kshs Kshs
At the beginning of the year 278.885% 943 256.650.717
Additional provisions during the year 31,366,798 22229226
At the end of the year 310,255,741 278.888.943
24. Reccivables from Non-Exchange Transactions
Description 202312024 20222023
- KShs KShs
GoK Development Grant Receivables 63.608.369 28.861.307
Receivable from Ecitizen 1.461 664 -
67,0?0,033 28,861 307
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25.

Inventories
Description 2023/2024 2022/2023
KShs KShs
Maintenance Stores 5,976,223 8,174,899
Stationery 2.004,481 3,356.673
Medical Drugs Reagents and Others 1,423,929 1,814,246
Cleaning Materials 690,032 489,183
Foodstuff 860,998 62.320
Bottling Plant 428,340 723,494
Computer Accessorics 1,170,806 2,396,529
12,554,809 17,017,343
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Property plant and Equipment includes the following assets that are fully depreciated:

I

| Description Normal annual
Cost or valuation depreciation charge

Motor Vehicles 69,007,791 1,990,000

[ Plant and Equipment 58,287,175 3,734,904
Crockery 1,934,074 .
Library Books 22,061,328 477,805 |
Computers 62,808,384 5,081,738
Furniture and Fittings 63,754,484 3,163,731_
Buildings 18,836,540 25,261,301
Total 233,908,392 39,709,482 |

27. Intangible Assets (ERP Software)

Description 2023/2024 2022/2023
KShs KShs
Opening Balance 12,232,283 11,427,002
Additions for the Year 456,000 805,281
Closing Balance 12,688,283 12,232,283
28. Biological Assets
Description 2023/2024 2022/2023
KShs KShs
Opening Balance 395,000 670,000
Gain/(Loss) during the Year (105,000) (275,000)
290,000 395,000
29. Trade and Other Payables
Description 2023/2024 2022/2023
KShs KShs
Trade and Other Payables 90,195,768 101,057,223
90,195,768 101,057,223
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A Refmdabte Deposits wind Frepay ments from Custoners

e o

|\.\'u‘ll|lllull 2020202 022/202
KShy KShy
S"_“I\'l’ll Canttlon Money SN REAIEN 22,205,024
Contaeton Retention Amount JA564,00Y AL56:4,900
General i Parties 122400070 1,000,590
Commission tor University Fducation 201,500 018,017
KUCCPY 116,000 1108, 500
Student Uinon Veey, SRE N DY 076,190
Unelaimed Reveipt Deposits .-.Iu.t_lll-ll.'l'.l?m 165,010
N8, 142,100 TLRLL 1
ML Prepay moents anl Deposits
Deseription 20232024 20221202
KShy KShy
Student Advaneed Receipts 00,404 R85 ONOLL 2
00104855 0N011,242
A Bank Loan
Deseription 20232024 2022/2023
KShy KShy
bl 3 f vy o
Il cﬂ“l l".l\ ments l|‘j:‘1(:’h‘":tltl: lllﬁil{;l‘ﬂﬂ‘l
Hlltl bt L) S B _.L_..i_}_:l_“_; |“ |\ {i(.‘ (:}._lif)_
et it a———— et L 00,004,414
Lurrent portion of | oan (| e within 12 montls) (1l AR ) (19,771 058)
- . s e ? =
;\“‘::"al:::n neportion ot loan (due beyoud 12 55,216,875 70,800 388

- -.—-—-—....__--_._..__._.._
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

33. Deferred Income

Description 2023/2024 2022/2023
KShs KShs
National Research Fund 4,025,594 4,025,594
Water Hycinth Project 104,245 104,245
Scholarship Funds 69,242 69,242
CarboGrass Project 1,151,045 -
Conflict Violence 39,396 39,396
Neonatal Sepsis Study 6,911 6,911
MBA Clean Cooking Solutions (NRF) 13,150 13,150
MBA Clean Cooking Solutions(ADB) 8,014 8,014
Grassroot Financial Innovation 4,045,687 4,953,863
Wheel Change Project 1,489 1,489
Safe Water and Waste Management 3,141,144 2,426,299
One Health for Vector Born Discases 53,358 709,563
Institutional Dev. NRF 3,564,211 5,769,211
Whose Heritage 94,307 94,307
Common Wealth 144,378 515,723
Maize yield 7,500 7,500
COVID-19 Containment 929,750 30,472
Perticipatory Innovation 57,186 57,186
Transformative Innovation 9,000 813,451
ACU-ECR Training 4,560 4,560
| More Crop Per Drop 63,740 63,740
Acheta Domesticus and Gryllus Bima 501,360 830,960
Healthynsect 3,313,713 3,588,153
Inscfoods(ACE 11) 223,356,330 36,145,808
VLIR-IUC 19,898,764 16,907,542
Pilot Health 139,366 139,366
EDCTP-CDAE 485,258 1,351,358
Parkinsons Awareness (PACKS) 3,517,874 60,953
APPEAR 580,827 34,459
Sweanfun Project 3,100,153 224 982
TransCIIT 1,726,830 2,478,311
NerveDog 19,677,298 9,817,562
Africa Research Excellence Fund 0 282.839
Agriprenucrship - 249.497
FAO Project 874,133 5,735,594
African Centre for Technology Studies 7,000 -
EARC Project 394271
Afrifoodlink Project 15,690,623 24,026,553
Kenet Project 471,000 =
Erasmus Chain Project 1,300,469 _
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Deferred Income (Continued)

Description 2023/2024 2022/2023
KShs KShs
HSWT Project 293.100 =
Safe Water AIDS Project 2,400 £
Gambling Project 172,552 -
GIZ Project 3,280,170 %
USAID Boresha Jamii 90,655,049 43,728,860
406,972,445 165,316,712
34. Employee Benefit Obligations
Description 2023/2024 2022/2023
KShs KShs
Employee Benefit Obligations 1,222,680 8,165,880
Part-Time Lecturers 46,037,222 40,721,862
KRA Withholding Tax Control-VAT 858,716 261,722
Payroll deductions obligations 129,157,411 61,081,373
177,276,030 110,230,837
35. Capital Grants Rescrves
Description 202372024 2022/2023
KShs KShs
Balance Brought Forward 3,537,376,383 3,458,515,076
Capital Development Grants 15,000,000 78,861,307
3,552,376,383 3,537,376,383
36. Revenue Reserves
Description 2023/2024 2022/2023
KShs KShs
Opening Balance 14,815,606 37,089,041
14,563,338
For the year (14,563,338) (22,273,436)
252,268 14,815,606
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2023/20234 2022/2023
Kshs Kshs
Cash flows from operating activities
Surplus/ (Deficit) -14,475,860 (22,273,436)
Add back: Depreciation 39,709,482 43,024,827
Gain/Loss on revaluation 105,000 275,000
Gain on Revaluation of Fixed Asset - (522000)
Operating surplus before working capital 25,090,544 20,504,391
changes
(Increase)/decrease in Inventory 4,462,534 2,639,589
(Increase)/decrease in Reccivables 8,404,578 (44,108,930)
= Increase/(decrease) in Payables 313.881,681 193,656,899
'| Net cash flows from operating activities 351,839,337 172,691,948
|

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

37. Cash Generated from Operations

| l

38. Financial Risk Management
The University’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks

and effects of changes in foreign currency. The University’s overall risk management programme
focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimise the
potential adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The
University does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extended to

customers with an established credit history.
The University’s financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

i) Credit risk
The University has exposurc to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay

amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks,
as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments. Management
assesses the credit quality of cach customer, taking into account its financial position, past

experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external assessment in

L accordance with limits set by the directors.
The amounts presented in the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful

' receivables, estimated by the University’s management based on prior experience and their

assessment of the current economic environment.



" ook '3 '3 ,") 'l'
Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science m.",! Tef}‘,::‘:’ Jf:ne 30, 2024
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ¢

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

: , financi sments representing the
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial sta:t,mc ~ of? gy CO”f:tCI"l[
. . . . Bl <
University’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the va é

obtained is made up as follows:

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as
The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allow
amounts that the University has recognised in the financial statements
any potentially irrecoverable amounts. The University Council sets
and objectives and lays down parameters within which the various as

arc operated.

ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk manag,
built an appropriate liquidity risk management framewor

short, medium and long-

ement rests with the Universit

k for the man
term funding and liquidity management re
manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and

below represents cash flows payable by the University unde

r non-derivativ

their remaining contractual maturitics at the reporting date. The

the impact of discounting is not significant.

Y T RN Fully Past due Impaired

Description Lol amount performing
Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs
[ As at 30" June 2024

Receivables from exchange transactions 343,903,561 | 233,647,820 | 4,821,943 | 310,255,741
Reccivables from non-exchange transactions 67,070,033 67,070,033 - E
Bank balances 613,250,163 | 613,250,163 - =
Total 1,224,223,757 | 913,968,016 4,821,943 | 310,255,741
As at 30 June 2023
Receivables from exchange transactions 558,633,965 | 271,31 5,730 | 8,429292 | 2 78,888,943
Receivables from non-exchange transactions 28,861,307 28,861,307
Bank balances 291,060,340 | 291 ,060,340)
Total o 878,555,612 | 622,534,146 | 8,429,292 278,888,943

they continue trading.
ance for uncollectible
is considered adequate to cover
the University's credit policies
pects of credit risk mana gement

¥ Council, who have
agement of the Univcrsity‘s
quirements, The University
actual cash flows. The table

¢ financial liabilitjes by
amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12m

onths equal their carrying bal

ances, as



Jaramogi Oginga Odinga University of Science and Technology
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year en ded June 30, 2024

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

Liquidity risk management (Continued)

ol Less than 1 | Between 1-3 Over 5 Total

Description

month months months itk

Kshs T K| Kshs L Kshs

As at 30" June 2024 B
Trade payables 19,802,684 13,198,658 57,194,516 90,195,768
Current portion of borrowings 6,491,087 12,982,173 19,473,260
Deferred income 406,972,445 406,972,445
Employee benefit obligation 5081306 | 129,157,411 | 46,037,222 | 177,276,030
Total 21,884,080 | 148,847,156 523,186,356 | 693,917,503
As at 30" June 2023
Trade payables 43,990,339 7,603,596 49.463,288 | 101,057,223
Current portion of borrowings - 6,570,353 13,140,705 19,771,058
Deferred income 165,316,712 165,316,712
Employee benefit obligation 8,427,602 61,081,373 40,721,862 110,230,837
Total 52,417,941 75,255,322 | 268,642,567 396,375,830

iii) Market risk

The University has established an internal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by the
Entity on an ongoing basis and evaluating and testing the design and cffectiveness of its internal
accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices and
foreign exchange rates which will affect the University’s income or the value of its holding of
financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. Overall responsibility for
managing market risk rests with the Audit, Risk and Governance Committee

a) Foreign currency risk

The University has transactional currency cxposures. Such exposure ariscs through purchases of
goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. Invoices denominated in
foreign currencies are converted at the time of payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate.

The University manages foreign exchange risk form future commercial transactions and recognised

assets and liabilities by projecting for expected sales proceeds and matching the same with expected

payments.
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Financial Risk Management

; T . — i assets and :
The carrying amount of the University’s foreign currency-denominated monetary &
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Other Total
Description In Kshs currencies
Kshs Kshs Kshs
As at 30™ June 2024

Financial Assets

Cash 610,000,400 | 3,249,763 | 613,250,163

Total Financial Assets 610,000,400 | 3,249,763 613,250,163

Financial Liabilities

Trade And Other Payables

90,195,768 - 90,195,768
Borrowings 77,191,153 - 77,191,153
Total Financial Liabilities 167,386,920 -1 167,386,920
Net Foreign Currency Asset/(Liability) | 442,613,480 | 3,249,763 | 445,863,243

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the Entity’s financial condition may be adversely affected as a result of
changes in interest rate levels. The Entity’s interest rate risk arises from bank deposits. This exposes

the Entity to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk exposure arises mainly from interest rate
movements on the Entity’s deposits.

Management of interest rate risk

To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that offer
favourable interest rates.

iv) Capital Risk Management

The University’s capital risk management aims to safeguard the University’s ability to continue as a
going concern. The University capital structure comprises of the following funds: )

2023/2024 2022/2023
Description Kshs Kshs
Revenue Reserve 91,668 14,815,607
Capital Grants Reserve 3,552.376.383 3,537,376,383
Total Funds 3,552,468,051 3,552,191,990
Total Borrowings 77,191,153 96,664,413
Less: Cash and Bank Balances (613,250,163) |  (291,060,340)
Net Debt/(Excess Cash and Cash Equivalents) (5306,059,010) (194,395,927)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

39. Related Party Disclosures
Nature of related party relationships

Entities and other parties related to the University include those who can exercise control or
significant influence over its operating and financial decisions. Related partics include management

personnel, their associates, and close family members.

Government of Kenya

The Government of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the University, holding 100% of the
University's equity interest. The Government of Kenya has provided full guarantees to all long-term

lenders of the University, both domestic and external.

Other related parties include:
i) The Parent Ministry.
ii) County Governments

iii) Other SCs and SAGASs

v) Key management.
v) Council Members
2023/2024 2022/2023

Description s e
a) Purchases from related parties
Purchase of clectricity 13,295,737 11,043,570
Total 13,295,737 18,821,869
b) Grants /transfers from the government
Grants from the national government . 787.300.422 1,071,976,228
Donations in kind - 16,646
Total 787,300,422 1,071,992,874
¢) Key management compensation
Council Members' emoluments 16,487,085 17,501,275
Compcensation to key management 47,812,640 70,384,138
Total 64,299,725 87,885,413

g+ —
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40. JOOUST Enterprise Limited

The University registered JOOUST Enterprises Limited in the 2917-2}‘0]: f;:s:r;:i:;ey‘sgg KZ:E
company opened a bank account in July 2021, and at the end of the period, the ban ;

57,950. During the year under review, the enterprise made sales of Kshs. |,07‘19,53f2, C(::Tzirrlsz::ﬁ
Kshs.493,611, Kshs 19,460, and Kshs. 566,461 from the sale of bottled water, sale of san

jerricans, and farm income respectively.

41. Siaya Learning Centre

Siaya County Government donated 50 acres of land to the University to host the School of Agriculture
and Food Security. The University is in the process of obtaining the title for this land.

42. Contingent Liability

cts 2023/2024 2022/2023
Description

Kshs Kshs
Court Case No. E002 of 2023 against the University 195,936,236.95
Total 195,936,236.95

The university is currently facing a contingent liability amounting to Kshs 195,936,236.95.

liability stems from a court claim related to Court Case No. E002. The

This
against the claim.

university has filed an appeal
43. Events after the Reporting Period

There were no material adjusting and non-adjusting events after the reporting period.

44. Ultimate and Holding Entity

The University is a Semi-Autonomous Government A

gency under the Ministry of Education. Its
ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

45. Currency

The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs) rounded to the nearest Kshs.
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20. Appendices

Appendix 1: Implementation Status of Auditor-General’s Recommendations

The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments
that were provided to the auditor.

Reference | Issuc/ Observations from the Mmmgemén] comments Status: Time frame |
| No.on the | Auditor (Resolved / ,
ii external Not Resolved) I’

audit !

Report

The provisions for bad and
1 Unsupported Rcceijaabics from dnubtf}ll dehfs is ba.scd on the Resolved Aug 2024
Exchange Transactions financial policy which was
under review by the Council.

2 Fallure'lo fevgiue f'ully Valuation is on-going Not Resolved | June 2025

depreciated assets in use.

3.1 Unsupported expenditure on The procurement procedure Resolved

repairs and maintenance was duly followed

32 Unsupported expenditure on The procurement of sccurity

procurement of security services was duly procured as Resolved
services per the law and the supporting
documents provided
33 Unsupported research expenses The projects did not have any
expenditures during the year
and are awaiting formal Resolved
close-out by the donors for
facilitate their winding up
AN
o

.................................

Prof. Emily Achieng Akuno, Ph.D, OGW

Vice Chancellor

Date:
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Appendix 11: Projects implemented by JOOUST

Projects implemented by the University Funded by development partners and/ or the Government.

Project title Project Donor | Perio | Donor Separate | Consolid
Number d/ commitme | donor ated in
durati | nt reporting | these
on required | financial
as per statemen
the ts
donor (Yes/No)
USAID BORESH JAMII 72061521CA0 | USAI |5 yrs | $25,000,00 NO YES
African Centre of Excellence | P15146 WORL | 5 yrs | $6,000,000 | YES YES
in Sustainable use of Insects D
as Food and Feeds
BANK
Strengthening JOOUST KE20211UCO | VLIR- [ 12yrs | KES NO YES
capacity in Natural Resource | 414105 ouUs 784.000,00
Management, Food Security
& Health 4
Grassroot Financial 18-11-CBS DANI | 4 DKK YES YES

Innovations for Inclusive DA YRS | 8,856,626
Economic Growth
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